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Introduction

The Directors present their strategic report of IRIS Debtco Limited (“the Company”), and the
consolidated group of companies (together “the Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2020.

IRIS provides software solutions and services for finance, HR and payroll teams, educational
organisations, and accountancy firms that helps them comply with regulations, drive productivity and
better engage with key stakeholders.

Ownership

On 6 September 2018, the Group was acquired by a joint investment of Hg Capital's Saturn Fund and
Intermediate Capital Group (ICG). A new Parent Company structure was put in place under the sale,
inciuding a new shareholder capital structure, and the new ultimate Parent Company changed to
Perennial Newco 2 Ltd. The Company was incorporated in the UK as a company limited by shares on
17 May 2018.

Founded in 2000, Hg is a specialist private equity investor focused on software and service
businesses in Europe and the US. Hg's objective is to pursue investments to support fong-term
growth, using its expertise working with software and services companies to implement initiatives
designed to maximise crganic expansion, as well as through rolling up fragmented sectors. Hg Capital
has been a long-term investor in IRIS, first investing in 2004. The Hg Saturn Fund focuses on
software businesses with enterprise values of more than £1 pillion.

Founded in 1889, |CG is a global alternative asset manager focused on providing capital to help
companies grow through private and public markets, providing strategies and funds aimed at
institutional investors.

Business Activity

With nearly 42 years' experience and a predominantly UK focus, the Group offers the greatest range
of specialist financial, human resources, engagement, payroll and bookkeeping solutions. These are
managed under the leading brands of IR1S, Cascade, PS Financials, FMP Global, Star Practice
Management, Practice Engine, Innervision, ParentMaii, KashFlow, BioStore and Taxfiler product
brands.

IRIS has over 120,000 UK and international customers with 80% having a tenure of five or more
years. IRIS is the largest third-party online filer with the UK government. 91 of the top 100 UK
accountancy firms and 50 of the top 100 US certified public accounting (CPA) firms use (RIS
software. Circa 20% of the UK’s workforce is paid by IRIS payroll offerings. More than 850,000 UK
employeas are managed by IRIS HR solutions. Over 11,000 UK schools and academies use IRIS,
with four millien parents and guardians using IRIS apps to connect with their children's school; 300
million messages are delivered between schools and parents each year, and over £15 million
transactional payments are processed every month. IRIS is placed in the Grant Thornton Sunday
Times Top Track 250 and the Megabuyte50.



IRIS Debtco Limited

Strategic Report {continued)

Annual Report & Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 April 2020

Strategy

During the year, the business has relentlessly pursued its business priorities to achieve revenue and

profit growth:

Strategy

Bringing value to the business

To build #1RIS

A substantial business
transformation programme
bringing together iRIS’
people, technology and
processes to help make a
difference to customers’ lives

The business has created a new Mission, Vision and Values,
focused on creating a standardised way of operating across the
Group, with a common goal and priorities. As part of this, a
business transformation programme, Quantum, was initiated to
move onto one integrated platform using Salesforce, Marketo,
NetSuite and Kimble.

This includes bringing together various legal entities into a
centralised IRIS legal entity {o operate as one company, as well as
a single communities’ portal for customer self-service.

The first go-live has been completed for the Cascade business
area with 250 users for systems including Salesforce, Marketo and
Kimble. This allows processing from leads to pricing; quotes to
sales order processing; and project implementation and customer
support. To date, 1,300 revenue gpportunities and £7 million
pipeline have heen processed through the solution by the year
ended 30 April 2020. A phased rollout is planned for the rest of
IRIS during the year ending 30 April 2021, including across
NetSuite application.

The programme has also seen a new Data Warehouse created
with a new Data Analytics team to centralise data from existing
legacy systems. One million rows of customer/prospect data are
processed every day within the Data Warehouse.

IRIS has also reduced the number of IT infrastructures from 15 to
one, bringing people together onto the same domain and creating
efficiency across the business.

To create a culture of exemp!

lary customer service

Enhancing customer
services, evolving customer
success and use intelligence
in customer products to
enhance the experience

During the year, IRIS has created a new customer success team,
comprising of specialists to cover its key markets. The team
manages 114 tier one customers with KPl monitoring. This has
resulted in a substantial increase of three-year renewals, which
have increased five-fold in the year ended 30 April 2020 compared
to the period ended 2019, helping to give customers visibility of
spend into future years.

The focus and evolution of customer service has resulted in
improvements in several areas, including improved customer
retention, and growth in the Managed Payroll business.
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| To improve the employee ex

erience

| Focus on increasing
engagement, reducing
attrition and driving
productivity. IRIS employees
are the Group's most
valuable asset and the
priority is to encourage and
recognise every success
with an emphasis on
teamwork, individual
contribution, inclusion and
diversity

Over the financial year IRIS has launched a bi-monthly internal
newsletter, introduced monthly site meetings for all employees and
social committees for each office (both of which moved to virtual
post-Covid), and has a company-wide initiative, CEO Award: Made
in IRIS which encourages entrepreneurial ideas to be developed.
This has led to employee attrition decreasing by 4.4% during the
financial year.

A focus on learning and development has resulted in over 375
employees attending 42 courses, again being delivered in a virtual
format from March 2020.

The business is also championing Giving Back Days, allowing
employees to take three working days each year to work for local
causes or charities. In the year ended 30 April 2020, 128 days
were given to communities, supporting 48 charities,

Growth through acquisition

Continue to identify
opportunities to expand both
domestically and
internationally where IRIS
can apply its expertise in
mission-critical software

During the year ended 30 April 2020, IRIS Group acquired FMP
Global, innervision and Star Practice Engine. More information
about acquisitions can be found later in this report.

Business Model
Group Overview

IRIS Group is one of the UK’s largest privately held software companies. its purpose is to be the most
trusted provider of mission-critical software and services, ensuring customers get it right first time,

every time.

IRIS takes the pain out of processes and lets professionals working in businesses and schools facus
on the work they love. Its software solutions and services for finance, HR and payroli teams,
educational organisations, and accountancy firms helps them comply with regulations, drive
productivity, and better engage with key stakeholders. Through simplifying, automating, and providing
insights on everyday mission-critical tasks for organisations of all shapes and sizes, IRIS ensures
customers can look forward with certainty and confidence.

Group Values

The values within IRIS have been created by employees and are the glue that binds the business,
supporting the vision, mission and culture. They are designed to make an IMPACT:

Innovation: We are creative and fearless in our work and curious and hungry to discover smarter
solutions. We always focus on improvement and embrace change.

Making it happen: We focus on the task at hand and produce high-quality results within ambitious
timescales. We set sfretch goails for ourseives and our teams and deliver at pace, on time, every time.

Passion: We take pride in our business, We are energetic, enthusiastic and highly self-motivated. We
bring passion to our roles and encourage and inspire those around us. #lovelRIS.

Accountable: We take ownership of our work and lead from the front. We seek out solutions, are
trustworthy and act with integrity and honesty. We deliver on our promises.

Customer focus: Our customers’ needs are our priority. We exceed their expectations and delight
them with outstanding service and great outcomes.

Teamwork: We collaborate widely and build supportive, open, inclusive environments where people
feel valued and are able to speak up and give their best. We recognise, appreciate, respect and care

for others.
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Revenue Generation

The Group generates revenue primarily through provision of software and services to its end
customers. Software services are provided primarily through recurring maintenance or subscription,
both through on-premise and cloud / SaaS solutions. Contract lengths range from monthly rolling for
certain solutions, through to multi-year arrangements.

Alongside subscription services, the Group provides implementation, managed payroll, and
consultancy services, including specialist HR advice.

Finally, Transactional Engagement services are offered through provision of SMS and Payment
platforms to allow Schools and Parents to better communicate and transact with each other.

How IRIS Adds Value

IRIS has been providing businesses, schools and organisations with mission-critical software and
services for more than four decades. Over the years, the business has invested in highly skilled and
experienced employees and teams in delivering mission-critical software solutions designed to meet
the needs of customers. A strong culture and responsible leadership has enabled the business to
grow and develop sustainably, giving customers confidence in {RIS as a strategic partner.

Through this, IRIS has scaled to internally develop and acquire new products and solutions, allowing
it to provide developed or acquired solutions to its existing customer base. This approach enables
customers to turn to IRIS, which has developed a trusted brand over many years, to purchase a best-
of-breed core solution and access a wider choice of other modules and functionality than that offered
by competitors.

Why Customers Choose IRIS

IRIS benefits from its trusted position and specialist knowledge to drive the adoption of new
functionality and modules to existing customers. IRIS remains well-positioned to continue this growth
strategy for many years to come, with Cloud technologies providing potential to accelerate this.

IRIS’ scale allows it to invest in state-of-the-art infrastructure, including cloud IT and related analytics.
This investment in technology and development enables the business to be relied upon to
consistently deliver regulatory updates alongside enhanced products and services.

The Group also continues to identify opportunities to expand both domestically and internationally
where it can apply its expertise in compliance-driven software and services, to ensure it can give its
customers the best support on their own growth journeys.

The Group is led by an Executive Committee made up of key leaders across Sales, Marketing,
Operations, Finance & Legal, Human Resources, and Corporate Development to drive better alignment
and acceleration of performance across all areas of the business.

Business Review
Progress against sirategic priorities

During the year, the business has relentlessly pursued its business priorities to achieve revenue
growth and profit. Strategic projects are underway to elevate IRIS to a household name and increase
opportunities to introduce the wider IRIS portfolio to customers.

IRIS has been recognised for its growth and achievements in the past year. In the Sunday Times
Grant Thornton Top Track 250, IRIS moved up 55 places, rising to position 172 in the league. Itis
identified as one of the top 50 best performing privately owned UK technology companies, ranking
23 in the Megabuyte50 League table. It has been named as a top IT company in the Southern Tech
100, coming sixth in the listing.



IRIS Debtco Limited Strategic Report (continued)
Annual Report & Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 April 2020

IRIS received the LUCA award for Taxfiler, and IRIS Payroll Professional secured the Customer
Service award at The Rewards. CEQ Elona Mortimer-Zhika was a finalist at the UK Tech Awards and
the Company was also a finalist in the Digital Accountancy Forum Awards, Accounting Excellence
Awards and Somerset Business Awards.

IRIS continues to be a techneology leader. Customers consume RIS products as traditional on-premise
software and as cloud-based Software as a Service (SaaS) applications. IRIS continues to develop a
comprehensive range of cloud applications using the latest computing technology to drive improved
productivity and efficiency for customers and currently represents around a quarier of IRIS overall
revenue.

In September 2019, IRIS launched its ground-breaking new platform, IRIS Elements. This is the next
generation adaptive platform connecting client data to the heart of the workflow and integrating a rich
inventory of solutions and services. Initially launched to the accountancy sector, it allows firms to
adopt at their own pace through an ecosystem of coexisting desktop, cloud and third-party apps - so
they ¢an access and work on their data anywhere. The business has taken an agile approach to
development and has now launched IRIS Elements AML Phase I, which streamlines the anboarding
AML, KYC and PSC process to make it easier for firms to remain compliant. This frees up time to
focus on delivering client advisory services — ultimately helping customers remain competitive in a
fast-paced market.

During the financial year, iRIS has progressed its strategic plan to fuel international expansion in
English speaking countries, focused on the United States. |RIS selects organisations where the
product portfalio complements its own range and targets UK companies who have successfully
developed overseas operations.

To achieve this strategic aim, in August 2019, IRIS announced its largest acquisition to date, FMP
Global, a leading provider of payrolf and HR services to international and UK-based businesses. in
the UK, FMP provides BACS registered managed payroll services, and HR and payroll software and
service solutions.

In September 2019, IRIS acquired Innervision, a global provider of lease accounting software, and
lease management consultancy services. This supports the goal to lead with compliance-driven
software expertise in domeslic and international markets, Based in the UK, Innervision has a user
base in over 100 countries, and its system hosts more than 120,000 leases with a combined value of
over €75 billion.

During Qctober 2019, IRIS acquired Star, a global provider of Practice Management software
sofutions for accounting firms, This foilowed the acquisition of Star Payroll in 2018 and formed part of
the strategic plan to fuel internaticnal expansion. Star provides an cpportunity o service the needs of
accounting firms requiring Practice Management with a functionally rich and technically advanced
salution focused on the needs of US certified public accountant (CPA) firms.

Covid-19 Pandemic

At the start of the pandemic, IRIS moved approximately 1,600 UK, US, Canadian and Indian
employees to homeworking within 10 days. This involved moving equipment and rolting out soft
phones (for use over the internet) to customer-facing employees. Within this time everyone was
working from home effectively.

The business maintained its strong customer focus. IRIS efficiently managed its bureau payroills,
including the end of tax year compliance, and updated payroll solutions several times to
accommodate emergency gavernment legislation (including furlough and sickness benefits) in very
tight timescales. The rapid response also saw the business launch a free-to-use messaging platform,
for its customers to communicate with their workforce or customers via text messaging and email.
IRIS has also undertaken an extensive customer survey to understand their barriers, concerns and
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plans for the future — enabling IR!S to provide further guidance and expertise as a transparent
business partner.

internal communications have been key for the Group. An initial internal survey in early April focused
on the emaotional concern for employees to understand how they were feeling working from home,
what they enjoyed, and the challenges faced. IRIS was also keen to gain feedback on the support
required in the homeworking environment. This resulted in several initiatives including, Acts of
Kindness: a campaign to highlight the generosity of employees and raise funds for nominated
charities. Working from Home Companions; a competition to ¢elebrate pets (including invented ones)
with wellbeing prizes, and a celebration of (RIS Heroes — highlighting exceptional work from
individuals across the business. IRIS has also continued its /RIS IMPACT Awards for employee
recognition and CEQ Award: Made in IRIS which encourages and develops entrepreneurial ideas. A
further survey has been conducted in June to track progress and respond to employee changes in
sentiment.

At every step, IRIS has been keen to keep employees safe, motivated and focused. Alongside regular
employee platform communications, IRIS TV has been launched. Accessed through Microsoft Teams
and the intranet (until office repatriation) this provides daily updates from across the business.
Another key vehicle for employee communications is a weekly blog from Elona Mortimer-Zhika, Group
CEO, starting on 20 March 2020. The strategy behind this was two-fold: to give emotional support and
inspiration as IRIS moved through the phases of reacting, adapting and reinventing; and to provide
authentic communication about the business, the changes during Covid-19 and plans in the coming
weeks and months.

Behind the scenes, the IRIS Board of Directors is now monitoring key performance indicators on a
weekly basis to review the impact of Covid-19 including cash position and collections, and responding
to what it sees and hears, as well as using the extensive experience and knowiedge of teams. IRIS
has adopted an agile and rapid response capability to embrace changes and opportunities and
believes that its business model is resilient.

As the pandemic has developed the Group has witnessed a slight uptick in customer attrition and
some delays to go live decisions by customers which will reduce new recurring revenue growth rates
in the short term, but overall the existing recurring revenue base remains strong. Any customers who
have been finding trading difficult have been closely worked with to ensure they are getting value for
money and those looking to leave to competitors have been monitored closely.

Costs have been carefully considered in light of the potential pressure on revenue growth to ensure
margins are maintained after the year end. A small proportion of employees (less than 10%) have
been placed on furlough in areas of the business most affected by the pandemic, predominantly
professional services and implementation where customers have not been available to complete the
work. The need for office space has been reviewed and with flexible working being so successful,
Management expect the number of desks required going forward to be lower.

Clearly the Directors acknowledge that we live in uncertain times at present, and it is unclear how the
recovery from the pandemic will develop. As a result, forecasting is more problematic, and there is a
recognition that growth trajectory will have been affected into the year ended 30 April 2021, with new
sales likely to be lower than previously expected. The Board has therefore approved a budget with a
lower growth than originally anticipated, and compared to the previous 5 financial years. However,
given the resilience of the business model and the performance in the year to date, with good visibility
of the revenue over the coming months, management remain confident in the budgeted financial
performance for the year ended 30 April 2021.

The Group has very strong liquidity with £118.0 million of cash as at the reporting date (2019: £36.9
million) and is well within leverage and covenant levels. This coupled with the limited reduction in
revenues mean the Group is very well placed to take advantage of growth opportunities when
confidence returns to the markets it operates in, and expects to bolster growth through acquisitions in
the coming months.

Post Balance Sheet Events

The Group does not have any adjusting or non-adjusting events to report after the reporting period
7
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Key Performance Indicators

Management consider the Key Performance Indicators of the Group to be Management Revenue,
Recurring Revenue, Management EBITDA, Management Operating Cash Fiow and conversion.

Management results for the Group are summarised as:

Proforma*
£mi% 2020 2019 2018
Management Revenue 199.4 162.2 139.9
Recurring Revenue % 90% 87% 83%
Management EBITDA g22 78.5 65.8
Management Operating Cash Flow 87.6 76.9 67.2
Cash Conversion % 95% 98% 102%

*  Pro forma results for the years ended 30 April 2019 and 2018 are given in order to provide year on year comparability of
growth for the consolidated group as if the Group had owned the businesses it acquired on 6 September 2018 for both
years. These pro forma results do not inciude any pre-acquisition results for entities acquired after that date.

**  Management Revenue, Management EBITDA and Management Operating Cash Flow are non-GAAF alternative
performance measures that are presented to provide readers with additional financial information that is regularly reviewed
by management. Such measures should nof be viewed in isoiation or as an alternative to the equivalent GAAP measure.
See note 35 to the financial statements for further details.

Management Revenue and Recurring Revenue

Management Revenue is made up of subscription, support and maintenance income, professional
and managed services income, and income from payment and SMS transaction income and excludes
the impact of revenue deferrals arising on acquisitions and the deferrals of revenue on certain licence
income streams.

The Group achieved revenue of £199.4 million up by 23% in 2020 whilst continuing to improve
recurring revenue rates. The majority of the increase in revenue was driven by acquisitions, coupled
with sales of products into new and existing customers, price increases to support continued
investment in product functionality and legislation updates, coupled with low customer churn.

Management EBITDA

Management EBITDA is defined as operating profit before depreciation, amortisation and transaction
relateq costs, adjusted to exclude management exceptional items, share based payments,
recognising sales commissions as they fall due and the impact of recognising rents as they fall due.
Management exceptional tems include other costs related to acquisitions, reorganisation costs and
other non-recurring items.

Management EBITDA of £92.2 million was achieved in 2020, a growth of 17%, and at a margin of 46%.
Management Operating Cash Flow

Management operating cash flow is defined as net cash flows generated from operating activities
adjusted to exclude the cash in respect of transaction related costs, management exceptionals and
the impact of recognising assets and liabilities for all ieases. Cash conversion is the percentage of
Management operating cash flow generated from Management EBITDA.

In 2020 the Group achieved Management Operating Cash Flow of £87.6 million. The drop of
conversion percentage in the year ended 30 April 2020 is driven by a slight increase in receivables
due to Covid-19 and larger amounts being invested in development expenditure for major business
transformation initiatives.
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Financial Position

At 30 April 2020, the Group had cash halances of £118 million (2019: £37 million) and borrowings of
£6860 million (2019: £440 miliion).

The key terms of the Group’s borrowing facilities are summarised as follows as at 30 April 2020:

Facility Maturity Amount Drawn
Down
Senior:
Facility B £585 millicn September 2025 £585 million
Acquisition Facility £75 million September 2025 £75 million
Revelving Facility £40 million March 2025 £nil

Puring the year, the Group increased Facility B by £145 million to fund acquisitions. The current
financial arrangements include a leverage covenant which requires the leverage (the ratio of
Consclidated Senior Secured Net Leverage to Consolidated Pro Forma EBITDA) dees not exceed
9.6x. At year end the leverage was substantially below this level at 5.13x, which has not increased
materially year on year despite IRIS making significant acquisitions in the year.

Social, Community and Human Rights Issues

IRIS acknowledges its responsibility to local communities in which it works and with which it does
business. The Company actively encourages its employees to recognise those responsibilities and
behave in a responsible manner towards the society in which it functions. It regards the setting of
good example as an important practice in this regard.

Employees can take three Giving Back Days each year and are encouraged to actively give their time
and skills to fundraise for a charity of their choice and volunteer on community projects. During the
last financial year, 128 days have been given to charities and community projects, including schools,
NHS, foodbanks, blood donations, pet refuge, hospices and MIND. A total of £14,842 (2019: £10,500)
has been donated to charitable causes.

As part of its responsibility around Social, Community and Human Rights Issues the Group has
undertaken the following activities and updates during the financial year 1 May 2019 to 30 April 2020:

IRIS Anti-Slavery Policy; IRIS continues to take action to understand all potential modern slavery risks
related to its business and to put in place steps that are aimed at ensuring that there is no slavery or
human trafficking in its own business and its supply chains. Third party organisations within the
supplier/contractor pool and other companies that may be engaged with are expected to ensure their
goods, materials and labour-related supply chains fully comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015; and
are transparent, accountable and auditable, and free from ethical ambiguities. The business has also
implemented an ‘Awareness Raising Programme’, training staff on modern slavery issues by
producing an IRIS anti-slavery policy included as part of the induction process and available on the
intranet.

IRIS has undertaken assessments using legal, risk and procurement teams to determine risk
exposure, It has also included the Modern Slavery Act 2015 within its statutory and reguiatory
compliance risk register to ensure the risk continues to be flagged, assessed and appropriately
addressed.

IRIS seeks to impose adequate and robust contractual provisions refating to modern slavery or
human trafficking compliance with applicable suppliers it works with. The business uses only
specified, reputable employment agencies to source labour and verifies the practices of any new
agency it is using before accepting workers from that agency.
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Whistleblowing Policy: The business encourages all its workers, customers and other business
partners to report any concerns related to the direct activities, or the supply chains of IRIS. Its
whistleblowing procedure is designed to make it easy for workers to make disclosures, without fear of
retaliation.

Employee code of conduct: IRIS code makes clear to employees the actions and behaviour expected
of them when representing the business.

Gender Diversity

Figures reveal that for 2018/19, before taking info account the transferred empioyees, IRIS’ mean pay
gap reduced from 25.7% to 24.8%, while the median pay gap went down from 16.9% to 16.4%.
However, once acquisitions are factored in, the mean gap has risen from 25.7% to 26.2%. The
median bonus gap decreased, reducing from 38.3% in 2018 to 28.7% in 2018, although the mean gap
increased from 44 6% to 50.1%.

IRIS Group is led by nine board members, of which two are women. Its executive team comprises of
three female leaders and eight male leaders. Calculated on core IRIS Group employees (which
excludes non-UK staff and employees stili employed by newly acquired entities) per the Gender Pay
report in 2019 the business comprised of 759 employees with women representing 40.95% of roles.
Increasing the number of women in its business and moving towards an equal distribution of men and
women across all levels is important to IRIS.

IRIS acknowledges there is room for improvement, and its goal is to create a better gender balance
across the business. To achieve this ambition, since April 2019, IRIS has implemented a number of
important measures to further strengthen its commitment to equality and closing the gender pay gap:

1. Celebrating Success

» Prometing and showcasing female senior leaders as role models across the business ~
including organising an online event and Q&A sessions with female members of the executive
team

+ Shining a light on inspirational female managers in the business through special features in
the bi-monthly group-wide newsletter to share practical advice and suggesticns when
climbing the career ladder

« Running a learning and development event for women focused on perceived or actual
barriers to success, and launching a Women inte Leadership mentoring programme

2. Reviewing Company Practices

» Undenaking a diversity and inclusivity audit of all its policies and practices and working to
remove any artificial barriers to women being successful in IRIS

« Adapting its promation policy to ensure women feel confident to apply and are equally
considered

s Applying for a ‘Great Place to Work Award’ to make sure it has a great work experience for all
staff, regardless of their gender

s Supporting networking across the organisation through regular business leadership events

3. Focusing on Recruitment and Selection
» Using innovative recruitment avenues to source diverse talent e.g. Women in Tech
e Reviewing all shortlists for management positions and senior rofes to make sure it has equally
qualified female applicants represented in its shortlists
* Supporting parents looking to return to work after a career break

Promoting Work Life Balance

+ Promoting its flexible working options across the organisation
+ Encouraging a healthy work life balance

10
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» Supporting its employees with a range of flexible benefits options including private heaithcare
with discounted family coverage, free life insurance and group income protection for all its
employees

« (ffering an Employee Assistance Programme

¢ Offering three Giving Back Days per year for all employees to have the opportunity to
volunteer in their local communities

Environmental

During the past year, IRIS has worked hard to increase staff awareness of environmental good
practice such as improving the frequency and quality of meter readings at all our locations. In 2019
we completed our ESOS submission and are working on delivering the recommendations.

We are rationalising office space and have closed 16 of cur older offices, which by their nature, are
energy inefficient. For those which are go forward locations we have also focused on making them as
energy efficient as possible, for instance by replacing over 12,000 sg. ft of office space lighting in our
Manchester Office, Faulkner House with energy efficient LED lighting.

With grey fleet transport accounting for more than half of our carbon emissions, we are investigating
the provision of a car loan scheme which will favour green vehicles for our drivers. This will enable us
to record our grey fleet emissions more accurately and help reduce these through an improved
reporting mechanism,

Due to the Covid-19 Pandemic all our employees have been working from home, which has
significantly reduced the need for commuting and travelling between offices. This practice is
continuing into our new financial year and will have a positive effect on reducing our transport and
emissions in the year to come.

Emissions Reporting
GHG Emissions and Energy Consumption

2019/20
Type of emission Activity kWh % of total
Natural Gas 217,670 40.0 6.3%
Scope 1 Heating Oil 163,146 40.7 5.4%
Sub-total 380,816 80.7 12.6%
Scope 2 Electricity 742,330 189.7 29.7%
Scope 3 Grey Fleet 1,536,043 367.6 57.6%
Total gross emissions 2,659,189 638 100%
ntensity metric:
-Numt-aer- of employees - 1,641
'l'rrorri;es of COée pér érﬁpioyee N 0.39

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

IRIS has followed the 2019 UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and has used the
2019 UK government's conversion factors for company reporting. The energy efficiency narrative
methodology has been created based on energy management best practice.

11
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Organisational Boundary

Strategic Report (continued)

IRIS has used the control appreach, whereby the Company accounts for 100 percent of the GHG
emission {and energy) over which it has control. The report is at Group level and includes information
of subsidiaries. However, the option has been taken to exclude energy and carbon reporting for any
subsidiary which itself would not be obligated if reporting on ifs own.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Directors continue to identify and evaiuate operational and other risks faced by the Group,
implementing changes where necessary to reduce risk to manageable levels. The quality of earnings
is underpinned by strong legal and financial governance, coupled with a focus on improving customer
service and increasing the lifetime value of customers. Refer to the section above on Covid-18 for
specific risks and uncertainties refated to the pandemic.

Disruption of IT Systems and Networks,
including Cyber Risk

The Group's business operations rely on the
efficient and uninterrupted operation of its
information technology systems and networks.
Loss of access, loss of customer data, and
GDPR fines present a risk if not properly
managed.

Mitigation

To suppott the business, detailed business
continuity plans are in place for all major locations
backed up by third party contracts to provide
dedicated alternate facilities and systems in the
event of disaster.

The Group also pays attention to scalability of
infrastructure to ensure all systems remain
appropriate for the needs of the business as it
continues to grow.

The Group has continued to invest in increased
cyber security measures during the year, including
for instance Mimecast, two factor authentication,
and additional training for employees.

Evolving Technology Market

The software market in which the Group
operates is characterised by evolving
technology, market practices and industry
standards. There is a risk that IRIS may be left
behind if it does not continue to invest in its
products and solutions, and therefore becomes
uncompetitive.

The Group has a strong commitment to Research
and Development, which allows for identification of,
and adaptation to technological, compliance and
market changes, thereby ensuring demands of
customers are met and products are delivered on
the latest technology platforms.

In September 2019 IRIS Elements was launched,
an ambitious multiyear programme to create a
cloud platform, which will deliver product
functionality across its core product suite going
forward, demonstrating the focus on long term
investment in IRIS products.

Regulatory Change
Customers come to IRIS as they want to

ensure that their compliance is taken care of,
and is right first time. If IRIS was unable to
ensure that praducts remained up to date for
regulatory change, customers would be less
confident in the products and may choose to
go elsewhere.

As a provider of regulatory software, it is imperative
products are kept up to date, and product updates
and releases are right first time.

IRIS works closely with HMRC to ensure that its
products meet all requirements, as shown by the
recent changes to reguiations arcund furlough
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Strategic Report (continued)

Risk Mitigation

Competitive Market Environment

The Group operates in a competitive
environment where the quality of products is
paramount.

For IRIS, product quality is paramount, and it is the
largest third-party filer with the government. It
employs quality assurance teams to reduce risk
associated with new product releases and to
improve both the quality and the timeliness of
releases.

The Group also attaches enormous importance to
providing the highest levels of customer service to
differentiate itself in the market.

Wider Economic Environment

The Directors acknowledge that the economic
environment can affect the overall
performance of the Group's businesses in
terms of both revenues and cost, including for
instance through glokal events such as Covid-
19.

Through continued development of preducts and
services, the Group endeavours to ensure that it
delivers good value to its customers. The Group
ensures that it reacts promptly to changes in
government legislations — e.g. furloughing, so that
business critical software products are kept fully up
to date and can continue to support its customers
and their businesses.

Acquisition Integration

There is a risk that businesses acquired by
IRIS do not integrate effectively within the
business, and investment objectives are not
met.

Acquisition integration is planned and monitored
closely to ensure the investment objectives for each
acquired business are met.

Risk of New Entrants

All technology companies are vulnerable to
disruptive market entrants.

IRIS has a market leading position and reputation
for quality which means it is well positioned. IRIS
also has the largest and the most integrated suite of
accountancy products in the market. The
combination of IRIS’s market standing and value its
solutions deliver, results in customers renewing
their subscription from year to year.

Breach of Copyright

The Group relies on intellectual property laws
including laws on copyright, trade secrets and
trademarks to protect its products. Despite
such laws and regulations being in place,
unauthorised copying of software may still
occur.

To mitigate this risk the Group endeavours to police
the unauthorised use of its products, uses secure
storage of its source code and engages the
services of specialists to enforce and protect the
Group’s intellectual property rights both in the UK
and US.

Retention of key employees

Legislative software is complex and requires
in-depth knowledge of both the legislation and
software development, to build and deploy the
solutions. Retention of key employees is
therefore important to ensure the business is
able to continue to deliver great software to
customers.

The Group has an increased focus on employee
satisfaction and continuing development, linking to
the strategy of #1RIS. This includes identification of
Top Talent across the business and personalised
development plans. It also includes cross training
across multiple products to remove any single
points of failure.
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Future Qutlook

Looking ahead, the Directors believe that there are substantial opportunities for further growth, both
organically and from acquisitions. Key management strategies to take advantage of the positioning of
the Group and market opportunity include a focus on M&A to strengthen core product portfolios,
diversify into new markets as well as taking advantage of significant cross-sell opportunity and
operational synergies within the new functional management structure.

Covid-19 is clearly set to impact all businesses going forward. It is expected that IRIS will see some
impact on its financial performance, as companies in many of the markets it deals in have pushed
back their investment decisions. Management have worked quickly to adapt to these changes, locking
to minimise the impact felt by customers and employees. 1RIS has ensured its clients are kept up to
date on the latest changes on government policies and its product and development teams have
worked to adapt its products to these changes, for example ensuring its payroll offerings were able to
easily conduct the furlough process. IRIS employees have transitioned to homeworking and
Management is constantly monitoring government guidance around this issue.

With customers’ requirements constantly adapting, IRIS will continue to evolve its product offering.
There is a growing demand for cloud-based solutions and IRIS is working to meet this demand. For
example, Elements was launched in September 2019 to address the changing demands its
accountancy customers are facing. Significant investment has been made and dedicated teams are in
place to build this platform and make this product available to its clients. The IR1S Board has made
the decision during Covid-19 to actually accelerate this investment in future product roadmap, to
ensure it is best placed to support its customers as we emerge from the pandemic.

The Directors are confident in the Group's prospects going forward.

The Directors would like to thank IRIS employees for their excellent contribution to its results and its
customers for continuing to choose IRIS to help them run their businesses.

On behalf of the Board,

Elona Mortimer-Zhika
Group CEO
28 August 2020
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of IRIS Debtco
Limited (“the Company”), and the consolidated group of companies (together “the Group”) for the year
ended 30 Aprit 2020.

Principal Activities

With nearly 42 years’ experience and a predominantly UK focus, the Company offers the greatest
range of specialist financial, human rescurces, engagement, payroll and bookkeeping solutions.
These are managed under the leading brands of IRIS, Cascade, PS Financials, FMP Global, Star
Practice Management, Practice Engine, Innervision, ParentMail, KashFlow, BioStore and Taxfiler
product brands.

The Group predominantly operates in the UK, with operations in the US through acquisitions.
The future outlook of the Group is outlined in the Strategic Report.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a number of financial risks including credit risk, interest rate risk,
cash flow and liquidity risk.

Cash Flow and Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its day-to-day cash fiow requirements through free cash reserves (£118 million
as at the year end) and the use of an available revolving credit facility of up to £40 million (2019: £40
million). At year end the balance drawn on this facility was £nil (2019: Enil).

The Group’s debt facilities specify a combination of financial and non-financial covenants and these
are monitored at Board level on a monthly basis.

As at the start of the year, the Group held a Senior loan of £440 million and undrawn and available
Acquisition and Revolving Credit Facilities of £75 million and £40 million respectively. The facilities
have a bullet repayment and term of between six and a half and eight years from completion. In
September 2019 a further £145 million was added to the senior loan to fund acquisitions in the year,
and during March 2020 at the height of the Covid-19 uncertainty the Group also drew down on the
Acquisition Facility of £75 million. This liquidity has not been required to date and remains available to
fund future acquisitions and strategic projects in the coming months.

As at 30 April 2020 the Group has borrowings gross of unamortised fees and including accrued
interest of £660 million (2019: £440 million)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group holds its borrowings through long-term variable rate facilities. Interest rate risk is managed
through the use of a series of fixed LIBOR interest rate swaps for a total notional amount of £220
million, which expire in November 2021.

Credit Risk
The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables, and
investments.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily atfributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the
balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. An allowance for impairment is made
where there is an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a
reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows. The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables and contract assets. The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales
and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced.
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The current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factars affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables are also considered. IRIS has assessed that there is no material
adjustment to provisions required to reflect the lifetime expected loss.

In light of the Covid-19 pandemic, particular consideration was given to debt recovery and given an
increase in the number of customers requesting payment hofidays Management increased their bad
debt provision to reflect the higher risk to expected credit losses. The Group continues to werk with
their customers to support where it can these in financial difficulty.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a farge number
of counterparties and customers. For continuing operations in the year ended 30 April 2020, no
income derived from a single customer exceeded 1% of the Group's revenue.

Going Concern

The Group has very strong liquidity with £118.0 million of cash as at the reporting date (2019:
£36.9m). it has no debt repayable until late in 2025 and continues to have significant headroom in its
only covenant test. This coupled with the limited reduction of revenues caused by Covid-192 due to the
recurring and highly cash generative nature of the business model, mean the Group is very stabie
from a profit perspective. Management have considered every plausible scenario and do not foresee
any of them causing this covenant test to fail.

The Directors believe that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they believe there is no material uncertainty in respect af
going concern and continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements for
the coming 18 months from the date of this report. Further information is included in Note 2.

Dividends

During the year, the Company did not pay a dividend (2019: £nil). The Directors do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend far the year.

Directors

The Directors who served throughout the year, and up to the date of signing, were as follows:

K Dady (Appointed 26 July 2019)

E Mortimer-Zhika (Appointed 26 July 2019)
M Cox (Appointed 26 July 2019)

M Biehl (Resigned 6 December 2019)

N Humphries

Director roles on the Board are as follows:

Kevin Dady was appointed to the Beard on 6 September 2018 and served as Chief Executive Officer
during the year, subsequently being promoted to the position of Exacutive Chairman as at 1
September 2018, Kevin has mere than 20 years of leadership experience, having held many
executive roles across the UK. Most notably, his experience includes membership of Capita’'s
divisional executive board, spending 18 years with the business, including overseeing its Professional
Services Division.

Elona Mortimer-Zhika was appointed to the Board on § September 2018 and served as Chief
Operating Officer until being promoted to the position of Chief Executive Officer on 1 September
2019. Before joining IR1S, Elona held several senior leadership roles in Big 4 and PE-backed
businesses, including Mavenir, Acision, Arthur Anderson and Deloitte,
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Michael Cox is the Chief Financial Officer. Prior to joining IRIS, Michael held senior leadership roles in
PE-backed businesses, including Xura and Acision, following time in practice with PwC.

Nic Humphries serves as a Non-Executive Director appointed by Hg Capital. Nic led the original
buyout of the business by Hg in 2004. Nic is the Senior Partner and Executive Chairman of Hg and
Head of the Saturn fund. He has ultimate responsibility for Hg’s strategy, management and
governance.

Directors' Indemnities

The Company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of certain of its
Directors and these remain in force at the date of this report.

Section 172 Statement

The Directors of the Company, as those of all UK companies, must act in accordance with the duties
detailed in section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2006 which is summarised as follows:

‘A director of a company must act in the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to
promote the success of the company for the benefit of its shareholders as a whole and, in doing so
have regard {amongst cther matters) to:
e the likely consequences of any decisions in the long-term;
s the interests of the Company's employees;
« the need to foster the Company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and
others;
the impact of the Company's operations on the community and environment;
the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business
conduct; and
+ the need to act fairly as between shareholders of the Company.’

The following paragraphs summarise how the Directors’ fulfil their duties:

Risk Management

iRIS provides mission-critical software and services to its customers. As it grows, the business and
risk environment also become more complex. It is therefore vital that IRIS effectively identifies
evaluates, manages and mitigates the risks, and that it continues to evolve the strategic approach to
risk management.

For details of IRIS' principal risks and uncertainties, and how it manages its risk environment, please
see page 12.

Employees
Employees are the Group’s most valuable asset. For the business to succeed it needs to manage
employees’ careers, offering opportunities for learning and developments and ensuring success is

recognised. Common values inform and guide internal behaviour so IRIS can achieve its goals in the
right way. For further details on employees, please see page 9.

Customers

Ensuring customers are provided the best quality products and services is fundamental to IRIS'
strategy. It is constantly looking to develop products to ensure they are in line with the latest
regulation and meet customers evolving needs. Customer service is key to success, and a key metric
measured in its annual performance.

For further details on how IRIS works with customers, please see page 5.
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Community and Environment

IRIS uses its position of strength to create positive change for the people and communities with which
it interacts. The business actively encourages employees to support communities and charities they
are close to.

For further details on how IRIS interacts with commmunities and the enviranment, please see pages 9
and 11 respectively.

Investors

The Board is committed to openly engaging with investors. For more information please see page 2.

Corporate Governance

The Board of the Company discharges its responsibilities by providing effective leadership to the
Group within a framework of prudent and manageable controls, which enables risk to be assessed at
an early stage and proactively managed. The Board sets the Group's strategic aims, ensures that the
necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Group to meet its business
commitments and regularly monitors management’s performance.

The IRIS Debtco Limited Board has adopted a schedule of matters, which are specifically reserved for
its decision. Such matters include, but are not limited to, the final approval of the annual budget and
strategic plan, major acquisitions and disposals, material contracts and any changes to the Group's
financing arrangements. It has also adopted a framework of delegated commercial and operational
authorities which define the scope of the executive officers’ powers and those of subsidiary
management.

The IRIS Debtco Limited Board of Directors’ intention is to convene at least six times a year at formal
Board meetings, however, has met far more often in recent times.

The Group's overriding objective is to maximise long-term shareholder value whilst exceeding the
needs of customers and employees. The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's approach to
assessing risk and the systems of internal contro! and for monitoring their effectiveness in providing
its ultimate stakeholders with a return that is consistent with a responsible assessment and mitigation
of risks. This includes reviewing financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
procedures. The role of Executive Management is to implement the Board’s policies on risk and
control and present assurance on compliance with these policies. All employees are accountable for
operating within these policies.

The Group has an Audit Committee, which consists of mernbers of the Group Board, including a Non-
Executive Chairman. The Audit Commitiee meets regularly with the Auditors to review audit planning,
audit and non-audit fees and the results of the Group audit and financial statements prior to
finalisation. The Audit Committee approves the appointment of the Auditors.

Employees and Reward

IRIS employees are the Group's most valuable asset and the priority is to encourage and recognise
every success with an emphasis on tearn work, individual contribution, inclusion and diversity. The
Group's core mission values spell IMPACT and stand for Innovation, Making it happen, Passion,
Accountability, Customer focus and Team work.

The Group has a committed and skilled workforce and the Group’s reward strategy aims to reinforce
the link between employee performance and business performance. In addition to a competitive basic
salary, total reward may include variable pay elements such as bonuses, commission, recognition
awards and employee share schemes. IRIS has continued to enhance flexible benefit schemes which
gives employees the opportunity to choose appropriate benefits to suit their lifestyles while ensuring a
core benefit package that supports IRIS’ duty of care to employees.
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Employee Consultation

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep
them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the
performance of the Group. This is achieved through formal and informal meetings including monthly
site meetings, the Group's intranet and a monthly newsletter.

Learning and Development

The education and development of the Group’s employees remain a priority. With the intent of
attracting, recruiting, developing and retaining key employees, the Group maintains a number of
policies and procedures, such as an Equal Opportunities Policy.

Employee development is encouraged through appropriate training and a newly established,
dedicated Learning and Development function. Regular and open communication between
management and employees is viewed as essential for motivating a highly educated workforce.
Briefings are held regularly to provide business updates and give opportunities for questions and
feedback. The Group maintains both a website, which is freely accessible, and an intranet site
accessible to all employees.

Disabled Employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the
aptitudes of the applicant concerned. In the event of employees becoming disabled, every effort is
made to ensure their employment with the Group continues and appropriate training is arranged. It is
the policy of the Group that the training, career development and promotion of disabled employees
should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees.

Corporate Social Responsibility

IRIS continues to be strongly aware of its responsibility for its actions and encourages a positive
impact on the environment and communities it serves. Along with ensuring it is compliant and actively
engaged in sustainability, IRIS encourages employees to ‘give back’ to the community and raise
money for charity. lts Giving Back Days initiative allows every person to take three days per year to
support local charities and communities by raising money or volunteering for a number of charitabie
causes. 128 days were given back to the community by IRIS employees in 2020. The Group made
charitable donations during the year of £14,842 (2019: £10,500).

The Group made no political donations in the year.
Health and Safety

The Company has well-developed health and safety policies and procedures, safeguarding
employees, contractors and visitors in compliance with applicable registration and practice.
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accardance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have prepared the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Parent
Company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and Parent Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Parent Company for that
period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Unian have been followed for the
Group financial statements and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for
the Parent Company financial statements, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Group and Parent Company will continue in business.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Parent Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group and Parent Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and Parent Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
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Directors’ Confirmations

The Directors consider that the annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group and Company's position and performance, business model and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Directors Report confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge:

« the Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit of the Company;

= the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and loss of the Group; and

= the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group and Company, together with a description of the
principal risks and unceriainties that it faces.

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:
+ so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group and
Company’s Auditors are unaware; and
« they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group and Company’s
Auditors are aware of that information.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behaif by:

ﬂ/ﬁ— |

B

Michael Cox
CFO
28 August 2020
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of IRIS
Debtco Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, RIS Debtco Limited’s Group financial statements and Parent Company financial statements (the
“financial statements”):

«  give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 30 April 2020
and of the Group’s loss and the Group's and the Parent Company’s cash flows for the vear then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and, as regards the Parent Company’s financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2066; and

»  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the
“Annnal Report”), which comprise: the Consolidated and Parent Company Balance Sheet as at 30 April 2020; the
Consolidated Income Statement and Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement, and the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended; and the Notes to the Financial Statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accerdance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (“1SAs (UK)") and
applicable law. Qur responsibilities under ISAs {(UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which 1SAs (UK) require us to report
to you where:

+ the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or

» the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the group’s and company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
group’s and company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion
or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our andit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether
there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required
by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK)
require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.
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Strategic Report and Directors  Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 April 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has
been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 20, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an andit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

[se of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to vou if, in our opinion:

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

¢  the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Nigel Reynolds (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

28 August 2020
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IRIS Debtco Limited

[ lidated Income
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

For the

perind from

Yearto 17 May 2018 to

30 April 2020 30 April 2019

Note E'000 £'000
Revenue 4 104 476 91.5458
Cost of sales {17 404} (8 105
Grass profit 177,572 83,440
Administrative expenses {150,736} (94,085
Operating profit / {loss} & 26,836 (10,645)
kinance income 7 189 203
Finance costs 8 {150,492 (87.317)
Loss before tax {123,467} 197,758)
Income tax (charge) f credit El {4 382} 5699
Loss for the yeariperiod (127,849} (91,060)
Aftnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent (128 291 {91 305
Non-controlling interests 33 442 245
[127,849) [91,060)
2020 2018
£'000 £'000
[management EpToA 35 82,156 54.355J
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income
for the Year ended 30 April 2020
For the
period from
Yearto 17 May 2015 1o
30 April 2020 30 April 2018
Note £000 £000
Loss for the year/period {127,849) {91,060)
Qther comprehensive (expense)! income
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translanhon of foreign operatons (153) 25
kems that will be reclassified to profit or loss: 25
Total other comprehensive {expense)income {153} 25
Total comprehensive expense for the year/period {128,002) {91,035)
Atinbutable to

Equity holders of the parent {128,477} (88.726}

Non-controlling nterests 33 475 256

{128,002} {91,035)
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IRIS Debtco Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 30 April 2020

2020 2919
Note £'000 £'000
Assets
Nen-current assets
Intangible assets 10 1560 741 1397 467
Property plant and equipment 11 9,085 6,328
Contract assets 4.1 4 844 2230
Right-of-use assets 12 8898 9,483
Deferred tax asset 18 833 541
1,584,408 1,416,050
Current assets
Inventones 131 139
Trade and other receivables 15 42 893 33073
Corporation tax - 77
Assets held for sale 14 2572 2572
Contract assets 4.1 1621 521
Cash and cash equrvalents 186 118.037 35,850
165,254 74,032
Tatal assets 1,749,662 1,490,082
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 1096.197 973.2:
Corporation tax 2357 -
Lease liahilities 19.4 2.080 1,174
Contract liabikties 41 75,927 62674
Accruals 23 25631 12,905
Provisions 20 251 145
1,202,453 1,050,189
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 21 650172 431.115
Trade and other payables 17 803 302
Lease labilities 19.4 8286 8612
Deferred tax 18 100.113 86 560
759,444 526,600
Total liabilities 1,961,897 1,576,798
Net liabilities {212,235) {86,716)
Equity
{Called up share capital 24 9 g
Shara pramium 24 9338 938
Accumulated losses {214 720} (88.726)
Equity attributable 1o equity holders
of the parent {213,713 {82,779}
Nan-controlling interests 33 1,538 1083
Totat equity {212,238) {86,716}

The consclidated financial statements on pages 24 to 51 of IRIS Debtco Limited (registered number 11368604) were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed
for 1ssue on 28 August 2020, They were signed on its behalf by

M Cox
Director

28th August 2020
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{RIS Debtco Limited

Parent Company Balance Sheet
As at 30 April 2020

2020 2019
Note £'000 E'DDD
Assets
Non.current assets
Investments 13 947 947

547 947

Current assets
Trade and other recevables 15 1.077 837 862 150
_fo7resr ___seaisn

Total assets 1,078,884 963,087
Current Kabilities
Trade and other payables 17 1077 437 562 150
4.077 937 962 150
Total liabilities 1,077,937 962,150
Net assets 947 947
Equity
Called up share capital 24 -3 g
Share premium 24 938 238
Retawned earmings’ 28 - .
Total equity 947 947
Note

' The profit for the financial year dealt with in the financial statements of the Company 1s £nil (2019 £ml)

The financial statements on pages 24 to 51 of IRIS Debico Limited {registered number 11368604) were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on
28 August 2020. They were signed on its behalf by

M Cox
Diractor

28th August 2020
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IRIS Debtco Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

Forthe

period from

Yearto 17 May 2018 to

30 April 2020 30 April 2018

Note £000 £000
Operating activities

Loss before tax {123,487} {97.759)

Adjustments to recancile loss before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment 2,883 1219
Depreciation and loss on nght of use assets 1780 714
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 10 47 641 27 852
Amortisation and impairment of other intangible assets 10 2337 72868
27 2483 2.565

Share based payments

Finance income 7 1189) {203)
Finance cosis 8 150 492 87 317
Working capital adjustments
Decrease f (Increase) in stocks 3g (51)
Increase in trade and otner receivables {1.954) (5.353)
Increase in accruals and deferred mcome 3.424 22758
Increase in trade and other payables 1.064 1.265
Cash generated from undetying operations 86,512 47,410
income tax paid {1924) (2423}
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 84,588 44,981
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 11 {5 030; {3 354)
Deveioprment expenditure 10 {6 023) {2 250)
Capiahsed enterpnse application software 10 (5132) -
Acguisiion of subsidianes, net of cash acquired 25 (167 695) (1309 974)
Payment to Estera Trust {Jersey) Limited 227 971y (302)
Deferred consideration (7.138) (174)
interest received 189 203
Net cash flows used in investing activities {191,800) {1,315,851)
Financing activities
Issue of shares - 947
Interast paid (28,085) (15 385)
MNet proceeds from porrowings 217,595 430,311
Met proceeds from parent undenrtaking - 892 600
Repayment of capital on lease liabiities (1111} (773)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 188,399 1,307,720
Met Increase in cash and cash equivalents 81,187 36,850
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod 18 36,850 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 118,037 36,850
Changes in liabilities arising from Financing activities
At Non cash AL
1 May 2019 Cash flow flow 30 April 2020
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Bank loans 440 000 220.000 - 560.000
Borrowing costs (8.885) {2.405}) 1.462 (9.528)
Interest accrual 686 {28 085) 30778 3379
Amounts owed to / due from Parent undertakngs 862,150 - 115.786 1,077,936
Lease habiltes 9,786 {1111} 1.671 10.346
1,403,737 188,399 162,405 1,744,541
At Non cash At
17 May 2018 Cash flow flow 1 May 2019
£'000 - £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank foans - 440,000 - 440 000
Borrowing costs - (9,689} 804 {8 88%)
Interest accrual - {15,365) 16,051 686
Amounts owed to / due from Parent undertakings - 892 600 9,550 962 150
Lease {iatniues - !773 10,559 9786
- 1,306,773 96,954 1,403,737

Non-cash flows relate to interest far value and foreign exchange #ems, revaluation of denvative financial instruments, the impact of acquisitions and the recognibon of
lease hapilties.
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IRIS Debtco Limited

At 17 May 2018

1Loss} f prafit for the perad
Other comprehensive mcome
Total comprehensive (expense)income for the period

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Issue of share capital

Acglusition of subsidiary

Share based payments

At 30 April 2019

(Lass) / profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expense) income

Total comprehensive {expense)/income for the year
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Acquisthon of subsidiary
Share based payments

At 30 April 2020

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

Total Equity N
Called up Share Accumulated  attributable . tor:;l Total equit
Share capital Premium losses 10 equity antrotiing otal equity
holders of Interest
the Company

£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
- - {81.305) (81 305; 245 (51.060]
- - 14 14 " 25
- - (91,291} (91,291) 256 (91,035)
a 938 - 947 - 947
- - - - 807 BO7
- - 2 885 2 585 - 2565
k] 938 2,565 3.512 807 4,319
g 38 38,726) iﬁ),?!_sq_ ,063 ,116
- - {128,291} {128,291} 442 {127,849
- - 186, (185 33 153)
- - (128,477) {128,477) 475 (128,002)
- - 2,483 2 483 - 2,483
- - 2,483 2483 - 2,483

Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

AL 17 May 2018

Result for the year
Total prehensive (

1e for the period

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Issue of share capuat

At 30 April 2018

Result for the yeay
Tatal campr (exp Mi '

for the year

Transactions with cwners in their capacity as owrers:
Share based payments

At 30 April 2020

for the Year ended 30 April 2020
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Called up Share Retained )
share capital Premium eamings Total equity
i £000 £000 £'500
g 938 - 947
g 938 - 947
E] 338 T T 8ir
3 938 Fan—7 v
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH IFRS

The consolidated financial stalements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with European Union ("EU"} adopted Internatioral Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and interpretations 1ssued by the IFRS Interpretations Commuittes {IFRS IC) and The Compames Act 2006 as applicable to companies using IFRS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2020 (including comparatives) were approved and autharised for 1ssue by the Board of

Directors on 28 August 2020 RIS Midco Limited 1s the Group's Parent Company and Perenmal Newco 2 Ltd 1s the Group's ultimate Parent Company

The jargest and smallest group of undertakings Tor which group financial statemeant are drawn up and of which the Company 1s a member 15 of Perennial Newco 2 Litd
and copies of these financial statements are available to the pubiic at the Company's registered office set out below.

The Company 15 a private imited company imited by shares, incorporated and domicited 10 the England and Wales.
The address of its registered office and #s principal place of business 1s 4th Fleor Heathrow Approach, 470 London Road Slough, Berkshire 5L3 8QY.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been applied consistently to all periods presented unless otherwise stated in the preparation of these consclidated
financial statements are summansed below.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the histonical cost convention except where adopted IFRS requires an alternative treatment. The
principal vanations from the historical cost convention relate to derivative financial Instruments which are measured at far value through profit and loss and far value
acquisiion accouniing.

As permitted by section 408 of the Companes Act 2006 the company has elected not to present its own profit and |oss account for the period. The company reported a
result for the year ended 30 Apnl 2020 of £nil (2018 £nil).

Anndividual Company cash flow statement has not been prepared as there are no specific allocated cash flows.

Basis of consolidation

The consohdated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entiies controlled by the Company (its subsidianes) made up to 30 April
each penod. Gontrol is achieved when the Company

has the power over the Investae,
15 exposed or has nghts. to vanable retum from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether of notit controls an investee If facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to ane or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

The results of subsidiaries acguired during the penod are included in the censclidated ncome statement from the date the Company gains controi unfess this date 1s
within sufficient proxsmity to the penod end to result in an immatenal impact te the financial statements.

Where necessary adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidwaries to bnng the accounting policies used into ine wiih the Group's accounting policies.
All intragroup assets and habilties equity income, axpenses and cash flows retating to transactions between the members of the Group are efiminated on consolrdaton.

Non-controlling interests are inibally measured at farr vajue Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling mterests 1s the amount of these interests at
inital recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in eguity. An applicable share of total comprehensive ncome 1s attributed to non-
controlling interests.

Adoption of accounting standards

The following new accounting pronouncements, none of which were considered by the Group as significant on adoption were adopted by the Group on 1 May 2019 ta
comply with amendments to {FRS and have all been endorsed by the EU.

Amendments to IAS 28 "Long-term interests in Assocuiates and Jont Ventures®
‘Improvements to IFRS 2015-2017 cycle™;

Amendments to IAS 19 "Plan Amendment, Curtalment or Settlement”,
Amendments to IFRS 9 “Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation”, and
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”,

The following proncuncements, 1ssued by the IASE, are effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2020 and have been endarsed by the EU. The Group's
financial reporting wilk be presented in accordance with these new standards, which are not expected to have a matenal impact on the consolidated ncome statement,
consofidatad statement of financial position or consolidated cash flow statement from 1 May 2020.

Amendments to IFRS 3 “Defimbion of a Business”.
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Matenal”, and
Amendments to IFRS 9. 1AS 38 and IFRS 7 “Interest Rate Benchmark Referm’

The IASB has 1ssued Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liablites as Current or Non-current”, effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
and IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts’, which 15 effectve for annual penods beginning on ¢r after 1 January 2023, the IASE has proposed defernng the adoption of these
standards bul no changes have yet been issued.

Although ot yet endorsed by the EU or the new UK endorsement board the Group's financial reporting wili be presented in accordance with the above new standards
frem 1 Apmt 2021 and 1 Apnl 2023 respectively. The Group's work to assess the impact of these accounting changes 1s cantnuing, however, the changes are not
expected to have a matenal impact on the consolidated income staternent, consolidated statement of finanoial pesition or consclidated cash flow statement.

The following narrow-scope amendments were issued by the IASB dunng May 2020 and are effective for annual penads beginming on or after 1 January 2022. they
have not yet been endorsed by the EU or the new UK endorsement board.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020,

Amendment to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment Proceeds before intended Use”™.

Amendment 1o 145 37 “Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract”, and

Amendment ta IFRS 3 'Referance to the Canceptual Framework”
The Group 1s assessing the mpact of these new standards and the Group's financial regorting will be presented in accordance with these standards from 1 Apnl 2022

Going concem

At 30 Apnl 2020, the Group had very strong liquidity with £718 milkion of cash and cash equivalents (note 16), no debt repayable until 2025 (note 19 and note 21) and a
year end leverage rauo of 5.13x on the £585 milion Senior loan facility versus a convenant leverage ratio of 9.6x (note 19). In addimon. the Group has access to an
additional Revolving Credit Facility of £40 milhen which remained unutilised at the year end {note 21}

In assessing going concerm, management have considered the effects of the Covid-19 pangemic ncluding the impact of recent trading resuits on the Group's budget for
the year ended 30 April 2021 which includes iower growth agsumgtions that onginally anticipated given the uncertainties in the current environment. The strong iguidity
position coupled with the limited reduction of revenues caused by Covid-1% due to the recumng and highly cash generative nature of the business medel, mean the
Group 1s very stable from a profit perspecuve.

The Directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resourcas to continue in operation for the foreseeable future, a period of not less than 12 menths from the date

of this report. Accordingly the consolidated financial staterments have been prepared on the going concerm basis and in accardance with those parts of the Companies
Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.
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2.7

2.8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combimations are accounted for using the acquisiton method. The cost of an acquishon 1s measures as the aggregate of the consideration transferred
measured at acquisiton date far value and the amaunt of any non-controling interests in the acquiree For each business comination, the Group slects whether to
measure the nan-comroiling INterests in the acquiree at far value or at the proporionate share of the acquiree s identifiable net assets Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as ncurred and included in administrative expensas

When the Group acquires @ business, it assesses the financial assets and ratlities assumed for appropnate classiication and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisiuon date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquree. If the business compination 18 achieved in stages, any previausly held equity interest 15 re-measured at its acquisiton date fair value and any resulting gan
of loss 15 recogrsed In profit of loss. It 1s then considered In the determination of goodwill.

ANy contngent consideralion 1o be ransfemed by the acguirer will be recogrised at farr value at the acquision date Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
Iiababty that 1s a financial Instrument and within the scope of IFRS 9 Finanzial Instruments 15 measured at Tar valug with changes in farr value recogrised either in profit
or loss or as & change to Other comprehensive income. I the contingent consideration 1s not within the scope of IFRS B 1t 1s measured in accordance with the
appropnate IFRS. Contingent considerabion that s classified as equity 1s not re-measured and subsequent setilement 1 accounted for within equity,

Goodwill 15 mtally measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transterred and the amount recogiised fur nus Runbiullng ntercsts, ond
any previous iNterest held over the net idenufiable assets acquired and habiies assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired 15 In excess of the aggregate
consideraton transferred the Group re-assesses whether 1t has correctly identfied all of the assets acquired and all of the habilities assumed and reviews the
procedures used o measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquistion date If the re-assessment stll results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired
aver the aggregate consideration transferred then the gaim 1s recogrised in profit or loss.

After imitial recogribon, geodwill 1s measured at cost less any accumutated impaimment losses. For the: purpose of Imparmment testing, goodwill acquired In a business
combination Is. from the acquisition date. allocated to each of the Group s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit frem the combination irrespechve of
whether other assets or habilites of the acquiree are assigned to those uris

The Group conducts annual impaiment tests on the carrying value of goodwill the recoverable amount s determined from a combination of value-in-use caltulations
ang pbservable relevant market transactions, For the purposes of assessing mpairment, assets are grouped at the lowest Jevels for which there are separately
identfiable cash flows {cash generaling units) which for the Group results in there being five cash generating units the Core IRIS businesseas {business acquired In
Saptember 2018 plus integraled acquisitions to date) Pracuce Engine. Innervision. Star and FMP.

The key assumptions 1n the value-n-use calculations are the discount rate applied the long-term operating margin (EBITDA} and the long-term growth rate of net
operating cash flows. In all cases. the approved budget for the following financial year formed the basis for the cash flow projections. The approved cash flow projections
In the three financial years following the budget year reflected management’s expectations of the medium-term operating performance of the business and growth
prospects in the markel, These assumptions have been furtner considered in hight of the Cowvid-1 9 pandemic including detalled sensitvity analysis being perfomed to
ensure there are no indicaters of 1mpairment,

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operaticn within that unitis disposed of the goadwill associated with the disposed aperation
15 included in the carmying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these arcumstances 1s measured based on the
rejative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating umit retained

Deferred consideration
Deferred consideration anses when settiement of all or part of the cost of a business combinatien falls due after the date the acquisibon was completed.

Where the payment of deferred consideration 1s not cantingent upon continuing empioyment af the vendors by the Group deterred consideration s stated at the fair
value of the total consideration outstanding, In these cases all deferred consideration has been treated as pant of the cost ef Investment. At each balance sheet date
deferred consideration comprises the far value of the remaining deferred cansideration valued at acquisition.

Where the payment af deferred consideration is contingent upon the continuing empioyment of vendors by the Group. 1t 1s treated as a remuneration expense and
accounted for as an employment benefit under 1AS 19, A charge is made through the Consciidated Income Statement as a cost of empleyment The cost assonated
with each payment 1s accrued over the penod it 1s eamed, At each balance sheet date the contingent deferred consideration balance compnses the accrual for unsettied
remuneration which has been expensed to the balance sheet date.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilies in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classificalion. An asset s current when 115
- Expected to be realised or intended te he sold or consumed In normal pperating cycle

= Hela pnmanly for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within tweive months after the repering period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restncted from beng exchanged or used to settie a habity for at least twelve months after the
reporting pénod

Al other assets are dassified as non-current. A habiity 18 current when
« s expected to be settled in narmal operating cycle
+ Itis held pnmarnly for the purpose of trading
« [t1s due to be setied within twelve months after the reporting period, or
There 15 no unconditional night to defer the settement of the lability for at least twelve months after the reporting penod

The Group dassifies all other fiabiities as non-current
Nefemed tax assets and liabikties are dassified as non-current assets and habilities

Fair value measurement

The Group maasures financial nstruments, such as dervatives and non-financial assets such as investment properties, at fair value at each balance sheet

date. Also far values of financial instruments measured at amorised cost are disclosed i note 19,2,

Fanr value 15 the pnce that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an arderly transacton between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair vaiue measurentent 1s based of the presumption that the transaction to sefl the asset or transfer the labily takes place either

+ In the pnncipal market for the asset or habdy. ar

s Inthe absence of a pnncipal market, N the most advaniageous market for the asset or liability

The pnncigal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a labiity 1S measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pncing the asset of flablity, assuming that market
partcipants act in therr ecenomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability lo generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to ancther market parijcipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Group uses valuation techriques that are appropnate in the creumstances and for which sufficient data are avaiable to measure far value maximising the use of
relevant observabie Inputs and minimising the use of unobservable INputs,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

Fair value measurement {continued)

All assets and habilities for which fair value 1s measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categonised within the fair value hierarchy described as follows,
bhased on the lowest level input that 1s significant to the farr value measurement as a whole

+ Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for :dentical assets or labilites

+ Level 2 - Valuauon techmigues for which the lowest level input ihat 1s significant to the fair valug measurement 1s directly or indirectly
observatle

+ Level 3 - Valuauen techrmigues for which the lowest level input that 1s signdficant to the fair value measurement 1s unobservable

For assets and labiltes that are recogrised in the financial statements on a recurnng bas:s. the Group determmes whether transfers have occurred hetween Levelsin
the hierarchy by re-assessing categonsation (based on the lowest level nput that 1s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
penod,

Tha Group determines the poiicies and procedures for both recurnng fair value measurement, such as investment properties, and for non-recurnng measurement, such
as assets held for distrbution in discontinued cpearations,

Al each reporting date. the Group analyses the movemants m the values of assets and liabihbes which are reguired to be re-measured or re-assessed as per its
accounting pohicies. For this analysis. the Group verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to
contracts and other relevant documents,

The Group alsc compares each change in the far value of each asset and hability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change 15 reasonable

The Group's review includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the vaiuations For the purpose of farr value disclosures, the Group has delermined classes
of assels and habihties on the basis of the nature. charactenstcs and nisks of the asset or liability and the level of the farr value hierarchy as explained above.

IFRS 9 Expected Credit Loss

The group applies the IFRS 9 simpufies approach to measuring expected credd losses which uses a ifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets. The expected {oss rates are based an the payment profiles of sales and the comesponding historical credit losses expenenced. The current and forward
locking infarmation en macroecanomic factars affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables are also considered. We have assessed that there 1s no
material adjustment to provisions required to reflect the Ifetime expected loss

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In recognising revenue under IFRS 15, Management have followed the five step model and considered identification of the coniract with a customer; identification of
performance obligations of each contract, transaction pnce allocation of transaction price to performance obligatron and recogmibion of revenue at the point the
paerformance obligaten has been satisfied,

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue 15 measured at the fair valug of the consideration recewed or receivable and represents amounts recervable for goods and services provided
In the normal course of business. net of discounts, VAT and other saies-related taxes. Revenue represents invoiced software licence fee income,
support and maimtenance INCome and services INCoMe

Perpetual software icence fee income 18 recognised in fuil on delivery of the lcence and the 1ssue of authonsation codes to activate the software,
Support and maintenance income I1s deferred at the date of Invoioing and released to the profit and loss account over the duration of the mantenance
contract. The balance of maintenance income not released to the profit and loss account 1s camed n the balance sheet wathin contract fiabilities.
Services Income is recognised in the month the services are performed.

Transactional and Payment revenue 1s recognised on fulfimeant of the service,

Training and implementation revenue I1s recognised when delivered, or by refarence to the stage of completion of the transachon at the end of the reporting periad.
This assessment 1s made by companng the proportion of contract costs Incumed to date to the total expected costs to completion.

Subscnption and cloud based Software as a Service (SaaS) income Is recogrised in the month the service s provided.
Interest incorne 15 acerued on a time bawis, by reference to the principal eutstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilties for the current penod are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authories. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countnes where the (Group operates and
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recaogrised directly In equity IS recognised In equity and not in the statement of profit or loss. Management perodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions whare appropaate,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the iiability method on temparary differences between the tax bases of assets and fiabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax habilties are recognised for all taxable temperary differences, except

When the deferred tax habiity anses from the initial recoqnition of qouodwill or an asset or iabiity in a transactiors that 1s not a business combination
and. at the tme of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit ror taxable profit or loss

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with nvestments in subsidianes, associates and interests it jomt ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it 1s prabable that the temporary differences wll not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax labilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carmying amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the company |s able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s probable that the differences will not raverse in the foreseeable future.
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Taxes {continued)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for ali deductible temporary differences. the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unusead tax losses Deferred tax assets are

recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the camy forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be Ublised. except

when the daferred tax asset relaing to the deductible temporary difference anses from the imimal recogninan of an asset or labiity in a transaction
that 1s not  pusiness combinabon and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the actountng profit nor taxable profit or loss.

In respect of deductible temporary differences assoaated with investments in subsidianes. assocates ang interasts In ot ventures deferred tax
assets are recogrised only to the extent that it s probable that the termporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxabie profit will
be avallable against which the temporary differences can be utfised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at @ach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available o allow all or part of the deferfed tax assel s be unlised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each raporing date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable protits will allow the geteried @ dssel (U be iewovered.

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured al the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 15 realised or the hability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been énacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date:

Deferred tax relating to tems recagrised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred lax items are recognised in cormelation to the underlying
transaction ether in Other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilites are offset If a legally enforceable nght exists to set off current tax assets aganst curent income tax liatilbes and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxaton authonty

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination. but not sahsfying the critena for separate recogniton at that date. are recognised subsequently f new
Information about facts ang crcumstances change. The adjustment 1s etther treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwally If it was incurred
during the measurement pencd or recogmsed in profit or loss.

Foreign cumencies
Functional and presentation currency
The consohdated financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is the functional currency of the parent company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currercy fransactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transacuons. Foreign currency monetary tems are translated at the
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carned at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevaiing on the date when the far value was determined. Ner-monetary items that are measured in terms of histoncal cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences ansing on the settements of monetary items and on the retranslation of monetary items are incluced i profit or loss for the penod  Exchange
differences ansing on the retranslation of non-manetary tems camed at faur value are nchiuded in profit or loss for the period except for differences ansing on the
retranslation of nan-monetary tems in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in Other comprehensive income. For such non-monetary items, any exchange
component of that gain or loss 15 also recogaised in Other comprehensive iIncome

(Group companies

On conscldation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are Iransiated into sterling at the rate of exchange prevaiing at the reporting date and their mcome
staterments are translated at the average rates of exchange during the penod. The exchange differences ansing on transtation for cansclidation are recognised in Other
comprehensive ncome. On disposal of a foreign operation, the compenent of Qther comprehensive INcome relabing to that partcular foreign operation |s recogrised
profit or loss,

Dividend distribution

Diadend distnbution to the Company's shareholders s recognised as a hability in the Group's financial statements in the period In which the dividends are approved by
{for final dividends) or paid t3 (for ntenm dividends) the Company's shareholders.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets ansing on business combinations are stated at farr value less accumulated amortisation and impaiment losses.
Amorisation 1s charged to the Income statement on a straight-ine basis aver thewr esumated useful bves as follows.

Enterpnse apphcaton software 5 years
Brand 10 years
Deveiopment expenditure 5 yeary
Intellectual property rghts. 810 12 years
Customer relationships 7 to 21 years

Research & developmeant

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure on an ndividual project is recagnised as an imangible asset when the Group can demanstrate

« The techrucal feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale
« 1t5 intention to complete and #s ability to use or sell the asset

- How the asset wif generate future economic benefits

+ The availabiity of resources 1o complete the asset

- The abibty to measure reliably the expenditure dunng development, and

- The ablity to use the imtangible asset generated

Where the Directors are satisfied as o the technical, commaraial and financial wviability of individual prejects, the identifiable expenditure 1s deferred and amortised over

the penod dunng which the Group 18 expected to benefit Amortsation refates to the penod in which future cash fiows are expected 1o anse which s expecied to be five
years.
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Noltes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the Year ended 30 April 2020
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost net of depreciation and any provision for imparrment. Depreciation 1s provided on a straight hne basis at the following
annual rates in order to wiite off the cost less residual value of each category of asset over its estimated useful ife as follows

Freehold lang NIl

Freehold buldings 2.7%

Leasehold improvements the lower of 20% and the period of the leasehold
Computer equipment 10% to 33%

Fixtures and fithngs 10% to 20%

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract 1s or contains a lease at inception of & contract. The Group recegnises a nght-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
hability with respect to all lease agreements in which 1t 1s the lessee except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and
leases of low value assets. For these leases the Group recagnises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-hne basis over the term of the lease
unless anather systematc basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assat are consumed.

The lease hability 1s initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implhiat in
the lease. ff this rate cannot be readily determined. the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease habiity compnse

+ fixed lease payments less any lease incentives,

+ vanatle lease payments that depend on an Index or rate nitizlly measured using the index or rate at the commencement date
» payments of penalties for terminatng the lease if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease hability 1s presenled a5 a separate ine in the consohdated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease habdity (using the effective interest method) and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease habilty (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related rght-of-use asset) whenever

+ the lease term has changed or there I1s a change In the assessment of exercise of a purchase ophion, in which case the lease labity 15 remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate,

+ the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value n which cases the lease
liatiity 1s measured by discounting the revised lease payments using the inital discount rate {unless the lease payments change 1s due to a change n a floating
interest rate 1N which case a revised discount rate 1s usaed).

+ a lease contract is madified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease llability 1s remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The Group did not make any such agjustments during the penods presented.

The nght-of-use assets compnse the imtial measurement of the corresponding lease hiability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and any imhaf
direct costs. They are subseqguently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligaton for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which 1t 1s located or restore the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditons of the lease. a provision 1s recognised and measured under |AS 37, The costs are incuded in the related
nght-of-use asset. unless those costs are curred to produce inventones.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful Ife of the underlying asset. if a lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset or the cost of the nght-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option. the related nght-of-use assetis depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The nght-of-use assets are presented as a separate Iine in the consolidated statement of financial postion.
The Group applies IAS 36 imparment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset s impaired and accounts for any dentfied imparment loss.

Varnable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not inciuded 1N the measurement the lease kability and the nght-of-use asset. The related payments are
recogrised as an expense In the penod :n which the event or condition that tnggers those payments occurs and are included in the line "other expenses’ in the
statement of profit or loss.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 18 permits a lessee nct to separate non-lease components, and instead account for any lease and associated non-ease components
as a single arrangement The Group has not used this practical expedient.

Investments

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less provision for impairment.

Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful kie are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. or more frequently f events or
changes in crcumstances indicate that thay might be impaired, Qther non-financial assets are tested far impairment whenever events or changes in crcumsiances
Incdicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverabla. Ansmpairment loss 1s recognised far the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds Iis
recoverable amount

The recaverable amount 1s the higher of an asset's farr value less costs to sell and value inuse. For the purpeses of assessing imparment, assets are grouped at the
lowesl levels Tor which there are separately idemifiable cash flows {cash generating units) which for the Group results i there being five cash generating units the Core
IRIS businesses [business acguired in September 2018 plus mtegrated acquisitions to date). Practce Engine, Innervisien, Star and FMP.

A financial asset s assessed at each reporing date to determine whether there 15 any objective evidence that it 1s impaired

A financial asset s considered ta be impaired if chjective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negatve effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset. For certan categones of financial asset such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be imparred individually are subsequenty assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolie of recesvables could include the Group s past expenence of collecting payments. an
ncrease in the numper of delayed payments in the portfolio, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that comrelate with default on
recevables

The camying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade recevables, where the carrying
amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade recervabla 1s considered uncollectible, it 1s wnitten off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously wntten off are creditec against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in the Income Statement.
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Inventories

Irventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making allowances far slow moving ar cbsolete tems.

Cost includes expenditure ncurred In acquinng the iventories and bringing them ta therr existing location and condition. Costis calculated using the first-in-first-put
method,

Assets held for sale

Assets held for sale. which represents a long leasehold propenty which 1s being marketed for immediate sale 15 présented separately as a current asset i the
conschdated balance sheet and s mgasured at the lower of s carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Assets held for sale are not depreciated or amortised
once classified as heid for sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and labilies are recognised in the Consahdated Balance Sheet when the Group becomeas a party to the contractual provision of the instrument

Financiai assets are unrecogmised when (hs confraciual nghts o the cash flows from fhe financial asset expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial nsks and
rewards are transferred

A financral habdity 1s unrecogrised when itis extinguished discharged cancelled or expires,

Financial assets and financial iabilitigs are offset and the net amount 1s reported In the Consolidated Balance Sheet if there 1$ a turrently enforceable legal nght to offset
the recogmised amounts and there 15 an INtentien o setlle on a net basis, to realise the assets and sette the labities simultaneously.

Trade receivables from contracts with customers.

Trade recevables are amounts due from custorners for goods sold or services performed i the ordinary course of husiness They are generally due for settizment
within 30 days and are therefore all dlassified as current. Trade recewvables are recognised imtially at the amount bf cansideration that 1s unconditional less prowisian for
impaurment,

Because of their short term nature the carrying amount of trade recervables approximates to their fair value,

A provision for impawmert of trade recetvablas 1s established when there is abjective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts dye according to the
onginal terms of the receivables The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplfied approach to measunng expected credil losses which uses a lietme expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables and contracl assets. The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales and the coresponding historical credit losses
expenericed. The current and forward looking nfermation on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the recevables are also considered.
We have assessed that there s na matenal adjustment lo provisions required (o reflect the hfetime expected loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preparation of the Consolidatea Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Balance Sheet, cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand and short-term deposits with an onginal matunty penod of three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are an integrai part of a subsidiary s cash management are
nciuded in cash and cash equivalents where they have a legal night of set-off and there 1s an intention to settle net, against postive cash balances, otherwise bank
overdrafts are classified as borrowings.

Trade payables

Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recagrivon The carrying amounts of trade and other payabies are considerad ta be the same as
therr far vajues due to therr shont-term nature.

Bomrowings

Interest-beanng borrowings are recognised nitially at fair value less atinbutable ransaction costs. Subsequent to inmal recognition. interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cos( with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the INcome statement over the penod of borrowing on an effective
Interest basis.

Derivative financial instruments
All derwatives are iniially recognised at far value, and are subsequently remeasured at fair value, through the Income Statement The Group does not hold or 15sue

dervative financial nstruments for trading purposes.

Where desmed signiicant, fair values are adjusted 1o reflect the impact of aur credit nisk far the demvatives that are in & ability positian and counterparty credit sk far
the derfvatives that are 1n an asset position

Borrowing costs

Where bormawing costs are directly atinbutable to the acquisiion, construction or production of an asset that necessanly takes a substantial period of tme to gel ready
for its intended use or sale they are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset All other bofrowing costs are expensed in the penod I which they occur. Bamrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity Incurs I connection with the borrowing of funds,

Provisions

General

Provisions are recegnised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or construetive) as a tesult of a past event, itis probabie that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the cbligation and a relable estmate can be made of the amount of the obligatien. When the Group expects
some or all of a provision to be rembursed, for example under an iINsurance contract, the reimbursement s recognised as a Saparate asset, but only when the
reimbursement 1s virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision 1s presented in the statemant of profit or loss net of any rembursement,

Provisions for difapidations

Provisions for dilapidations in respect of property leases are recognised when the property lease cortracts are entered into Inital recegnion 1s based on the obligatons
within the contracts to retum the properties to their onginal state on conclusion of the lease terms The inmal estmate of dilapidaton casts 1S revised annualty.
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Post-employment benefits

The Group operates a persenal defined centributon pension scheme whichis open to all employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently admimistered funds. Cantnbutions payable to the scheme in respect of the period are recognised as an operating cost in the income statement.

Exceptional items

Management exceptional tems reflect tems which individually or, if of a similar type in aggregate, are disclosed separately due o their size or incidence 10 order to
obtain clear and censistent presentation of the Group's pedormance.

Share based payments

During the year the group gave senior management the opportunity o acquire shares in the Company at market value. These shares which are administered by the
Estera Trust (Jersey) Limited. cannaot be traded and must be sold back to the Group when employment ceases. The shares are only redeemed on sale of the Group.
The fair value of the shares 1s measured at the 1ssue date and s recogmised in eguity in the share-based payment reserve. The number of shares expected to vestis
estimated based on the non-marke? vesting conditions. The eshmates are revised at the end of each reporting penod. and adjustments are recogrised in profit or loss.
and the share-based payment reserve. Where shares are forfeited due to a falure by the employee to satsfy the service conditons, any expenses previously
recognised in relation to such shares are reversed effective from the date of the forfeiture

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certan eritical accounting estmates and judgements. it also requires management to
exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.

Estmates and judgements are continualiy evaluated and are based on tustoncal expenence and other factors including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In particular information about significant areas of esbmation uncertainty and cnlical judgements In applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect an
the amount recogrised n the financial statements are described below

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
Capitalisation of development cost

The Group capitalises internal costs of software development where the Directors are satisfied as to the technical commeraal and financial viability of individual
projects  Judgement 1s required in determining whether a preject 1s suitabie for capitalisation and 1n determiming the useful econemic life (note 10).

Lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an econamic ncentive 1o exercise an extension opion. Extension options
are only included in the lease term if the lease 1s reasonably certain lo be exiended.

Assets refating to contracts with customers

Assets relating to contracts with customers represent commissions paid to employees which are deferred over a 5 year pencd. The 5 year penod represents the
expected length of time that the customer relauonship will be retained and as s.ch the cost 1s recognised over that time period. Where legisiative updates are raquired to
software in order to remam functonal, the Group recogrises Revenue from that software over the penod of the license.

Critlcal Accounting E and A ptions
Acquisition accounting
Accounting for acquisitons requires a far value exercise to assess the assets and habdities acquired. including any separately identfiable intangible assets. The

process of determining farr values may require management to make estimates which are subjective in nature. For each acquisition an appropnate discount & royalty
rates were determined, along with detalled expected future cashflows to calculate the fair value of each identfied intangible asset.

impairment - goodwill and ather intangibies

IFRS requires management to perform impairment tests to determine whether goodwill and other intangible assets are impaired on an annual basis or otherwise when
changes in events or situations indicate that the camying value may not be recoverable.

Impairment testng reguires managemant to judge whether the carying value of assets can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows that they
generate. Calculating the net present value of the future cash flows requires estimates to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters including management's imihal
expectations of EBITDA, the long-term growth rate of net operating cash flows and an appropriate discount rates to reflect the nsks nvolved. Thase assumptions have
been further considered in hght of the Cowid-19 pandemic including the impact recent trading results on the Group's budget for the year ended 30 April 2021 as well as
on longer term foracasts and growth rates given the uncertainties in the current environment,

Changing the assumptions selected by management, in particular growth rate assumptions used In the cash flow projections. could significantly affect the Group s
imparment evaluation and nence reported assets and profits or losses. Further details including a senstivity analysis, are included in note 10 ‘Intangible Assets’.

Trade and other receivables

There 1s uncertainty regarding customers who may not be abie to pay as their invoices fali due. The Group apglies the IFRS 8 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a ifetime expected loss allowance for 8l trade receivables and contract assets, based on the payment profiles of sales and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced. In ight of the Covid-19 pandemic, particular consideration was given by management to debt recovery and. given an
ncrease in the number of customers requesting payment hohdays, management increased their bad debt provision to reflect the higher nsk to collectabiity and expected
credil losses (see note 15).

Uncertain tax provisions

Uncertainties ex:st with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax faws. and the amount and timing of future taxable ncome. Given the long-
term nature and complexily of existing centractual agreements, differences ansing between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumphons could necessiate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded, The Group uses IN-hguse tax experts when assessing uncertain tax
positions and seeks the advice of external professional adwisors where appropriate. The Group recagnises provisions for uncertain tax posiiens when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event and management judge that it 15 probable that there will be a future outflow of economic benefits from the Group to settle
the obhgation Uncertain tax positions are assessed and measured on an Issue by 1ssue basis wathin the yunsdichons that we operate ether using management s
estmate of the most Ikely outcome where the 1ssues are binary. or the expected value approach where the 1ssues have a range of possible cutcomas. {nate 18).

Corttingent Consideration

Any deferred contingent consideration 1s recogrised at farr value at the acqursiion date. Subsequent changes to the far value of the contingent consideration, which 1s
deemed to be an asset or hiability, are recogrised ether m the profit and loss account or in other comprehensive income, in accordance with IAS 39. Depending on the
conditions of thase future consideraton payments, judgements are made as at the acquisition date and then subsequently updated at the balance sheet date. These

include profit related consideration for which detaled forecasts are produced and the tair value of the [ikely payments zre caiculated using an appropnate discount rate,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial labibes (prnmanly interest rate swaps) recorded in the balance sheet cannot e measured based on quoted pnices
i active markets, theur far values are measured using valuation techniques including the Drscounted Cash Flow model The inputs to these models are taken from

observable markets where possible but where this 1s not feasible a degree of judgement is required in establishing farr values Judgements mcude considerations of
Inputs such as iquidity nsk, credit nsk and valatility, Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported farr values of financial Instruments (nate 19),
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REVENUE

Revenue reported for the year relates solely to revenue from contracts with custemers. with customers typically paying in advance at stan of the cantratt. When
revenue recognmised in respect of a customer contract exceeds amounts recelved of recevable from a customer at that tme & contract asset s recogrised. If amounts
received or receivable from 3 customer excesd revenue recogrused for 3 contract for exampls if the Group receives an advance payment from a customer 2 contragt

lianiity 1s recognised.

Revenue and profit betare taxgton i respect of contnuing operations anse from the principal acteaty of the Group  This represents a singie class of business the
prowision of software and services to accountants schools and businesses. The majonity of continuing operations 18 undertaken n the United Kingdom

Assets and liabilities relating to contracts with customers

Assets relating ‘o contracts with customers represent commissions paid to employees which are costed over a 5 year penod, Contract assets iIngreased dunng the year
as the Group continued to pay commissions to employees the expansion of the Group's operatons foliowing acquisitions during the year and the cumulative impact of
the 5 year deferral penod following the incorporation of the Company on 17 May 2018,

As at As at
3@ Aprif 202G 30 April 2019
£'000 £000
Non-currant assets relaiing to contracls 4844 2230
Current assets relating to contracts 1621 621
5,465 _2.851

Contract habilties represent revenue received up front for contracts which are recognised over 12 months. Contract habdibes increased dunng the year as a result of the
expansion of the Group's operations following acquistions [see note 25) and an increase 1n overall contract activity. Matenally all of the £62.674,000 recarded as current
contract habilihes at 30 Apnl 2019 was recogmised as revenus duning the year,

As at As at
30 April 2020 30 Aprit 2019
£'000 £'G00
Contract habilihes 75927 52674
75,027 62,674

STAFF COSTS
Yearto Period ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
Employge costs (Induding Directors) dunng the year were £000 £000
Wages and salanes 65710 34250
Social securty costs 7414 3873
Other pension tosts 2.068 847
75,192 38980

Employes numbers and costs have been included within the Group from & September 2018 from the point of acqusiion of Perenmal Neweo Lid.
Included n the amounts above are employee cost capitalised in respect of development of software assets in the year of £6 023 000 (2019 £2.250,000)
The Company had no employees (2018 none).

The average morthly number of employees (including Directors) of the Group dunng the pencd was as follows

Yearto Period ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019

Number Number
Techmical 1042 607
308 180

Sales

Admimstration 293 137
o

1.

Average monthly number of employees for the penod ended 30 Apal 2018 have been amended 10 include the Group's Ihdia subsidiary The average number of monthiy
employees in the pnor period after the point of acquisition of Perenmai Newco Ltd on 6 September 2018 was 1.329.

Yearto Period ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019

Directors' emoluments

£'000 £000
Agaregate emoluments 616 58
Pension contnbutions 23 -
639 58
Number of Directors remunerated 3 3
Number of other Directors not remunerated but for which a management tee 1s payable (See nole 32) 1 3
Three Orrectors accrued benefits under the Group s defined contnbufion pension scheme,
The mghest paid Director In the year received total emolumenis while senving as a director of £285 000 {2019 £29,000j,
Key management remuneration Yearto Period ended
30 April 2020 3D April 2019
£000 £900
Aggregate emoluments 1236 2142
Pension contnbutons 30 16
1.266 2 158
Number of key management 3 2

Key management included the Executive Chairman Chief Executive Dfficer and her direct report for the year

36



RIS Debtco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

6 OPERATING PROFIT / {LOSS)
Total Group

Yearto Period ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019

£'000 £'000
The operating profit / {loss) s stated after charging
Slaff costs 75,192 38.980
Amounts related to inventory included in cost of sales 1,082 147
Research and development expenditure 5910 5607
Amorhisation of intangible asseis 45978 28771
Other transzction related costs 8223 12 829
Depreciaban of property plant and equipment 2756 1279
Depreciabon of nght-of-use-assets 1,780 714
Deferred consigeration 1,989 -
Share based payments 2483 2,565
Fees payable to the Group's Auditors comprise the following: Yearto Period ended
30 April 2020 30 Apri 2019
£'000 £'000
Tax services 71 55
Corporate finance services 1,333 1,130
Total non-audit fees 1,404 1,185
Audit fees - for the audit of parent Company and consoldated financizl statements 200 195
Audit fees - for the audit of subsidiary compames 420 146
Total fees 2024 1.530

T FINANCE INCOME
Yearto Period ended
30 April 2020 30 Apnil 2019
£'000 £'600
Deposit account interest 188 203
Total finance income 189 203

8 FINANCE COSTS

Yearto Period ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£'000 £'000
Barik loan interest 28,562 14,964
Amortisation of lpan issue costs 1,462 804
Unwinding of discount 213 67
Bank facity fees 1.514 1.368
Net loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (note 19.3) 2,408 302
Interest expense an lease liabiites 549 262
Interest payable on amounts due to parent undertakings 115,786 69.550
Total finance costs 150.492 B87.317

The unwinding of discount is in relation to deferred consideration on the acguisition of subsidiary undertakings.
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INCOME TAX CHARGE / {CREDIT)

The major components of Ncome lax expense arg

Citrrent income tax:

UK Income tax at 19% for the year (2019 139%
impact of overseas Income tax

Prier year adjustments

Deferred tax:

Notes to the Fi
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

Relaling to onginakon and reversal of temporary differences

Relaung to effect of change in tax rates

Income tax charge f {credit) reported in the income statement

Loss before tax

The tax for the year 1s higher (2019 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2019 19%, Thes differsnces ara explained below.

jal

{

Yearto Period ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£'000 £'000

3675 1.578

481 323

253 -

4409 1901
(8,338 {8.600;

9,308 -
zn {3,600)
4,382 15,6%9)
Yearto Period ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£'000 £'000
(123467} {97 759)

Yearto Period ended
30 April 2020 30 Aprit 2019
£'000 £'000
Loss before tax muttiphed by standard rate of corporaton tax in the UK of 19% (2019 19%). {23 459) {18.574)
Effects of
Expenses non-deducubie for tax purposes 18,926 11875
Research and development tax credits (1338) -
Effect of current year changes in Statulpry tax rates on deferred tax balances 9308 -
Decrease In tax losses {308) -
Adjustments in respect of prior year tax hagihties 253 -
Total tax charge / (credit) reported in the income statement 4,382 {6,698)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Enterprise  Development Brand intellectual Customer Goodwill Total
Application  Expenditure Proparty Relation-
Software ships
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
COsT
At 17 May 2018 - - - - - - -
Ansing an acquistion 7382 11,074 14,500 178172 335678 383,508 1,436,314
Additons - 2 250 - - - - 2,250
At 30 April 2019 7 382 13,324 14 500 178,172 335678 885 508 1,438,664
AMsing an acquisition - - - 13.844 52474 135,779 202,097
Additions 5132 6023 - - - - 11,158
Disposals (7 382) - - - - - (7.382)
At 30 April 2020 5132 19 347 14 500 192.018 388.152 1,025 287 1,644,434
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION / IMPAIRMENT
At 17 May 2018 - - - - - - -
Ansing on acquIstons 1,261 4,808 - - - - 6,159
Amortisation for the penod 964 1155 942 10409 16301 - 29,77
Impairment for the penod 5 167 - - - - - 5,167
At 30 April 2019 7,382 6 063 942 10,409 16,301 - 41,087
Amortisation for the year - 2337 1,450 17 444 28747 - 49,978
Disposals (7 382 - - - - - (7,382)
A 38 April 2020 - 8400 2392 27 853 45 048 - £3,693
NET BOOK VALUE
At 30 April 2020 5,132 10,947 12,108 164,183 343,104 1,025,287 1,560,741
At 30 April 2018 - 7,261 13,558 167,763 319,377 889,508 1,397,487

The Group tests enterpnse application software development expenditure brand Inteflectual property nghts and customer relationships annually for impaimnent, or
more frequently If there are indications that such intangitie assets might be impared Dunng the pencd ended 30 Apnl 2019 the Direclors were af the opiman that the
Enterpnse Application Software should be fuky imparred. As at 30 Apnl 2020 the Directors are of the opinion that no further iImpaiIrment 15 recired

During the year ended 30 Apnl 2020. the Group disposed of Enterprise Application Software with a net book value of £nil (cost £7 382 000 accumulated amortisation
£7 382 000) that had been fully wntten off dunng the penod ended 30 Apnf 2018

All amartisation charges relatng to continuing operations in the year have been charged througn administrative expenses

Details of acquisihons in the year are shown in note 25 During the year goodwill was reviewed for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 “lmpairment of Assets” and
incluges the potential impact from the COVID-19 pandemic which was considered a tnggenng event under 145 38 For the pwpases af tis impaiment review goodwilt

for conbnuing operations has been valued on the basis of discounted future cash flows
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group 1s managed and marketed as cne range of offerings with many customers using a number of products with acquisitons subsumed inte the main Group over
tme. For the purposes of assessing impaiment, assets are grouped at the lowesl levels for which there are separately dentifrable cash flows jcash generating units)
which for the Group results in there being five cash generating umits the Core IRIS businesses {business acquired in September 2018 plus integrated acquisitions to
date} Practice Engine Innervision. Star and FMP The carrying value of goodwil at the end of the y=ar 1s shown below

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Core RIS businesses (business acguired in September 2018 plus integrated acquisihons to date} 876.748 876748
Practice Engine 12760 12 760
innervision 13.850 -
Star PM 30748 -
FMP 91 181 -
1,025,287 389,508

The Group conducts annual Impairment tests on the carrying value of goodwill, the recoverable amount 1s determined from a combination of value-in-use calculations
and abservahle relevant market transactions. The key assumptions in the value-in-use calculations are the pre-tax adjusted discount rate applied EBITDA and the long-
term growth rate of net operating cash flows In all cases, the approved pudget for the following financial year formed the basis for the cash flow projections. The
appraoved cash flow projections in the four financial years following the budget year reflected management's expectations of the medium-term operating performance of
the DusINess and growth prospects in the market, These assumptions have been further considered 1n hght of the Covid-19 pandemic iIncluding detalled sensitivity
analysis being perfarmed to ensure there are ne indicators of iImparrment,

Year ended 30 April 2020
The table below shows key assumptions used in the value in use calculations
Key assumptions

Core IRIS businesses FMP
Pre-tax adjusted discount rate 11 2% 11 2%
Five year CAGR in adjusted EBITDA to Aprl 2025 12 1% 12 2%
Long-term growth rate of net aperating cash flows 25% 2.5%

The discount rate apphed represents a pre-tax rate that reflects the market assessment of the ime value of money at the end of the year and the nisks specific to the
business.

The estmated recoverable amount of the Graup s Core IRIS businesses and FMP exceed their carrying vaiues by £208 million (16°%) and £25 million (20%)
respectively. If the assumptions used in the impairment review were changed to a greater extent than as presented in the following table. the changes would. Inisolation
lead to an impaimment loss being recognised for the year ended 30 Aprl 2020,

Change required for carrying value to equal recoverable

amount
Core IRIS busil ad FMP
Pre-tax adjusted discount rate +3.4% +1 7%
Five year CAGR in adjusted EBITDA o Apnl 2025 -3.6% -5 2%
Long-term growth rate of net operating cash flows -1.8% nfa

Management considered the following reasonably possibie changes in the key adjusted EBITDA and long-term growth rate assumptions, leaving all other assumphons
unchanged. The sensitivity anabysis presented below 1s prepared on the basis that the reasonably possible change in each key assumption would not have a
consequential impact on other assumptions used in the imparment review.

Management believes that no reasonably possibie or foresesable change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the difference between the carrying value
and recoverable amount for any cash-generating unit ta be matenally different to the base case disclosed below.

Recoverable amount less carrying value

Core IRIS businesses FMP
£m £m
Base case at 30 Apnl 2020 208 25
Change in five year CAGR in adjusted EBITDA to Apnl 2025
Decrease by 2pp (116) {14}
Increase by 2pp 110 14
Change n long-term growth rate of net operating cash flows
Decrease by 1pp {119) (12)
Increase by 1pp 149 15
Change n pre-tax adjusted discount rate
Increase by 1pp (159 {18)
Decrease by 1pp 200 20

Period ended 30 April 2019
The table below shows key assumptions used in the value in use calculations for those CGUs with significant goodwill akocated them,
Key assumptions

Pre-tax adjusted discount rate 11.6%
Long-term adjusted EB{TDA margin 45% to 46%
Long-term growth rate of net operating cash flows 2.5%

Management believed that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would have caused the carrying value of any cash-generating umit to
matenally excead s recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount of the Group's operations exceeded their carrying values by £109 milbon. The changes in
the following table to assumptions used In the Impairment review would, in 1solation, have led to an mpairment loss being recognised for the penod ended 30 Apnl 2019,

Change required for camrying
vatue to equal recoverable

amount
Pre-tax adjusted discount rate +0.9%
Growth forecast far the Group -7.0%
Long-term growth rate of net operaung cash flows -2.5%

Duning the penod endad 30 Aprl 2019, the Group Impared the net bosk valus of its Erterpnse Apphcation Software intangible asset of £6.2 milien The asset was IP
capitalised as a result of the work previously performed on a strategic programme to replace its legacy Customer Resource Management ("CRM") and Enterpnse
Resource Planning ("ERP") systems. This programme was abandened prior to the end of the penod and a new prograrm launched in May 2019 following the functional
management restructure in order 1o support future growth.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COosT

AL 17 May 2018

ANsINg on acquISiion

Additions

Reclassficalion as Assets held for sale
At 30 April 2019

Additions

Ansing on acquisition
Disposals

At 30 April 2020

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

At 17 May 2018

ANsmMg on acquisition

Charge for the penod

Reclassfication as Assets held for sale
At 30 April 2019

Charge for the year
AMSINg Gn acquistion
Disposals

At 30 April 2020

NET BODK VALUE
At 3¢ Aprit 2020

At 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

Freehold land at a cost of £100 000 is included within Land and bulldings and 1s not depreciated,

Depreciation expenses from contnuing operatons of £2 756 000 {2019 £1 219 000) have been charged through administrabive expenses (note 6).

RIGHT-DF-USE-ASSETS
GROUP

COST

AL17 May 2018
ArnsIng on acquisition
Addimons

At 30 April 2019

Additions

Arising on acquisiion
Disposals

At 30 April 2020

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 17 May 2018

Ansing on acquisition

Charge for the penod

At 30 April 2019

Charge for the year
Arising on acquisition
Disposals

At 30 April 2020

NET BOOK VALUE
At 30 April 2020

At 30 Aprii 2019

Right-of-use assets relate to property leases heid by the Group

Land and Leasehold Computer  Fixtures and
Buildings tmprove- Equipment Fittings Total
ments

£'000 E£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
3760 406 7.292 2756 14,214
- 13 1,444 1,897 3,354
(2619 - - - 2,818
1.141 4189 8.736 4653 14,949
- 1 2924 2105 5030

- 284 971 447 1,702

- [165) {1978 (735) (2,876)
1.141 539 10 655 6470 18,505
751 149 4 765 1,783 7.448
35 17 885 282 1,219
(47 - - - {47)
738 166 5,850 2065 8,620
35 25 2073 523 2,758

- 7] 791 138 1113

- {101y [1,945) (723, (2,769)
774 274 § 660 2.103 9,720
367 265 4,088 4,367 9,085
402 253 3,088 2,588 5,329

Property

leases Total

£'000 £'000

4.333 4,333

5,120 8,120

10453 10,453

586 586

B70 870

(353} {353)

11,556 11,556

256 256

714 714

970 970

1,780 1,780

280 260
(353) (383

2657 2,657

8,899 8,899

9,483 9,483

charge for amorbsabon included in the table above The amortisabon charge in the year 18 included within Administrative Expenses.
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INVESTMENTS

Investment in subsidiary undertakings

COST AND NET BODK VALUE
Al 1 May 2019/17 May 2018
Additions

At 30 April

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued}

for the Year ended 30 April 2020

Additions for the year ended 30 Apnl 2020 reprasented a £nil {2019, £947 000} investment in RIS Bidco Limited.

The Group's subsidiary undertakings are shown below.

Undertaking

123Comms Limted

Beaumont Sotutions Limitex’
Biostore Limted

Blayhall Payrall Limited'

Blayhall Professional Linea
Cascade Human Resources Lim tred
Eurowage Limreq'

Fastrak Limred'

“MP Glabal Bidea Limied”

SMP Global Holdings _imited’

=MP Glabal Midco Lmitad

SMP HR and Payroll Software Limied’
FMP Payroll Services Linked’
Galaxy Payroll Limiten’
Homescontact Limfed’

Hosted Accountants Limted'

Indigo Merketing Limited"
Kneryision Management Limited”
Intex 1 Radographic) Limred

IRIS Bidro Limtted’

IRI5 Business Software Limaed"
RIS Captal Limited”

RIS Group Limted’

IRIS Holdings Limited’

RIS <P0 Resourcing . Intha) Privata Limted’
IRIS Tay-oll Software Limred’

RIS ~3ymH Sakustians Limited'

IRIS Resourcing Limted’

IRIS Software Group Limited”

IRIS Software Limned’

Kashflow Software _imted

Keytme Chjective Limttea’

Malibu Sidco Limited”

MCN Assomates Limtted’

MCN Holdings Limeted”

Perennial Newco Limfed

Perennial BdCo A Limted”

Phroot Limfted”

P-achice ngine Systems. Ing.!

25 Financeals Limited”

PSlPayrell Senaces’

PTP Saftwars Limited”

Results Squared Limited’

Software |Holdoo 2} Limted”
Software (Holdca 41 Limteg’

Star Americas Software Solutions LLC™
Star Computer Group Limed’

Star Professional Sofbtware Sclutions Limited’
Tasfiller Limitad

The Practee Engine Company Limied’
The Practice Engine Graup Limited”
Truancy Call Limied’

Truancy Call Lmtted”

Country of
registration or
incorporation
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England 3 Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Englard & Wales.
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
India
England & Wales
England 3 Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Englang & Wales
England & Wales
Guernsey
Guemsey
Guernsey
UsA
England & Wales
Canada
England 3 Wales.
England & Wales
England & Walas
England & Wales
USA
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Republic of lreland

" Subsidiary registersd address dth Floor Heathrow Approach, 470 London Road,

- Subsiiary registered sddress Poftipati Plaza 77 Nun

Principal

actlvity

Sofware development
Software development
Sottware development
Holding company
Software development
Software development
Payroll services
Softwaie development
Haolding company
Heolding company
Haolding campany
Softwars development
Payroll senvices
Soltware development
Software development
Software development
Software development
Sofware development
Holding compary
Helding company
Software development
Helding company
Software development
Holding campany
Outsourcing seraces
Software development
Sokware development
Holding company
Holding company
Soltware development
Software development
Holding company
Holding company
Software devalopment
Holding company
Holdirg company
Holding company
Soltware development
Software develapment
Software develooment
Payroll sernces.
Software development
Sotware development
Holding company
Holding company
Software development
Saoftware development
Software develapment
Software develapment
Software development
Software development
Software development
Software develapment

Slough, England L3 BQY
DO D34

High Road, Ch

! Substdiary regestered address PO Box 186 1 Le Marchar Sireet, St Peter Port, Guarnsey, GY 1 4HP

* Subsidiary regrstered address 100 Colony Square 1175 Peachtree Street NE, 10th Flaar, Atlanta, GA 30361 USA

* Subsidiary “egistered address 4200 Soutn Serice R4 #200 Surlington Ontaria, L7L 4X5, Canada

" Subsidiary registered address D Hare Triangle Plaza, 3770 W Bryn Mawr Sute 1300, Chicage. llinoks 60631, USA

" Subsiary registered address 9 Trinty Street Jublin 2 Republiz of Ireland

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

At 1 May 201917 May 2018

Reclassification of fixed asset freehold property

At 30 April

Assets held for sale represents a freehold property which is being actively marketed by the Group

1

Company

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

347 -

- 947

947 947

Percentage of ordinary shares held
At 30 April 2020 At 30 April 2019
Group Company Group Company
Q0% 0% 1004 %
100" 0% 100" 3%
100% 0% 100% %
100% Q% 1004, 0%
100% 0% 0% 0%
100% 0% 100% %
100% a% 0% 0%
100°%. Q% 100% 0%
100% 0% 0% 0%
192% 0% % 1%
100% 0% % %
100% 0% 0% 0%
100% 0% % %
100% 0% 1907 1%
100% 0% 100% 9%
100% 0% 100% %
100% 0% 100% 0%
100% 0% 0% 2%
100% 0% 100% 0%
100% 100% 100% 100%
100% 0% 100% 0%
100+ 0% 100% 0%
100% 0% 100% 0%
100% 0% 100% %
25 0% 58% %
100% % 100% 0%
100% 0% 100% %
100% % 100% 2%
100% Q% 100% %
100% 0% 100% %
100% 0% 100% 0%
100% % 100% %
0% 2% 0% 2%
100% 0% 0% %
100% a% 0% 0%
100% Q% 100% %
100% % 100% %
100% Q% 100% 0%
100% % 100% %
120% 9% 130% Th
100% % % P
120% 2% 120% %
1004 % 100% %
100% 1% 100% 0%
1004 0% T00% 0%
100% 1% 0% 0%
100% % 0% 0%
100% 0% 0% 0%
100% % 100% 0%
100% 0% 100% 0%
100% 0% 100% D%
100% 2% 100% 0%
100% 2% 100% 0%
2020 2019

Group Company Group Company
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

2572 - - -

- - 2572 -

2,672 - 2,572 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued}
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2020 2019
Group Company Group Company
£000 £'000 E'000 £'00D
Current
Trade receivables from contracts with customers 38 354 - 29.583 -
Less provision for impairment of recevables 1717) - 534, -
Trade recevables from contracts with customers - net 36 637 - 2B.989 -
Other receivables 1115 - 588 -
Prepayments 5 141 - 3.044 -
Amounts owed by Group undenakings - 1077937 302 962 150
42,893 1.077.937 33,073 962150
477353 T077.937 33073 962 150

Trade recewables from contracts with customers are non-interest beanng and are generally on terms of 30 to 80 days.
As at 30 Apnl 2020 trade receivables from contracts with custamers of aninitiai value of £1.717 000 were impaired and fully provided far (2019 £584.000).
Movements on the Group provision for imparment of trade recervables from contracts with customers were as follows

2020 2018

£00D £'000
At 1 May 2019/17 May 2018 594 -
Acguired provision 327 627
Uthised {794; {274)
Charged fo the Income Statement 1.590 241
At 30 April 1.717 594

In determining the recoverability of a trade recewvable the Group considers the ageng of each receivable and any change in the arcumstances of the individual
recaivables. Tha Directors balieve that there 1S no Turther provision required in excess of the allowance for doubiful debts.

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been ncluded In administrative expensas in the income statement. Amounts charged to the:
allowance account are generally written-off when there 1s no expectation of recovenng additional cash,

The Group apphes the IFRS 9 simplihed approach to measunng expected credit losses which uses a lfetme expected loss allowance for all trade recevables and
contract assets, The expecled loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales and the corresponding histarical credit losses expenenced. The current and forward

iookng formaton on macroeconamic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables are alse considered. We have assessed that there Is no
material adiustment to provisions required to reflect the ifetme expected loss.

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the end of the year 1s the farr value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The Group held no collateral as securty The
Directors astimate that the carrying value of trade recevables appreximated te thew far value,

Interest 1s charged on balances with group undartakings at 12%.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2020 2019

E'DDD £'000

Cash at banks and on hard 118.037 36850
118,037 36,850

The Company had no short term deposits during the current year. Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on dally bank deposit rates. The Group
held no short-term deposits at the year end. The Group s credit nsk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties are well establishad
banks with high credit ratings.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2020 2019
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Current
Trade payables 5.347 - 2.927 -
Amounts owed to parent undertakings 1076.663 1,077.837 952 140 962.150
Sccial secunty and other taxes 4205 - 1.500 -
VAT 8.026 - 5541 -
Other creditors 151 - 773 -
Denvative financial halities (note 19.3) 1,805 - - -
1086,187 1,077,937 973,291 962,150
Non-cumrent
Denvatve financial labikties {note 18.3) 803 - 302 -
303 - 302 R
1,097 100 1,077 837 973 583 962 160

Trade payables are non-intarest beanng and are nomally settied on 30-day terms.

The far values of trade and other payables are not matenally different to those disciosed above. There 15 no matenal effect on pre-tax profit if the instruments are
accounted for at fair value or amortsed cost.

The Group's exposure to currency and hiquidity nisk related to trade and other payabies 1s disclosed in Note 20

Balances with parent undertakings are unsecured and bear interest at 12%.
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19.1

19.2

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liability

At 17 May 2018

Acquisition of subsidianes
(Credited)/charged to the Income statement
At 30 Aprit 2019

Acquisition of subsidanas
{Credited)/charged to the income statement
At 30 April 2020

At 30 April 2019
Deferred Lrabiity
Deferred Asset

At 30 April 2020
Deferred Liability
Deferred Asset

Notes to the Financiat Statements {cantinued}
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

Depreciation

Acquired Other " Other timi
Intangible Intangible In excess o Derivatives ner timing Total
capital differences
assets assets
allowances
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'900
91,388 3585 (156) - 1188) 84,639
(5 268) 3.134; 1145) (58} E {8,600)
86,119 461 {361) {58) (182) 86,039
13243 - 13 - - 13,262
745 1461) 245 457} (89) (27)
100,113 - (43) _{515) _(281) 99,274
85,119 461 - - - 86 580
- - {301) 158} {182) 5410
86,118 461 {301) (58) (182) 86,039
100 113 - - - - 100,113
- - 143) (515) (281) (839)
100,113 - {43) {515) (231) 99,274

The Finance (No 2) Act 2015, which provided for reductions in the main rate of corporation tax from 19% to 17% effechve from 1 Apnl 2020 and substantively enacted
on 15 September 2016 were reversed in March 2020 and as such 19% has been reflected in the calculaton of deferred tax at the balance sheet date.

The closing deferred tax liability as at 30 Apnl 2020 has been calculated at 19% (2019 17.3%) reflecting the tax rate at which the deferred tax labiity 1s expected to be
reversed n future penods, Deferred tax for other junsdictions s calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective junsdictions.

The Group offsets tax assets and habities if and only if 1t nas a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets and current tax liabiihes and the deferred tax assels
and deferred tax habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority,

The Group has total tax losses of £1.8 million {2019 £3.0 millian) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the compames in which the

losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of £1.8 million (2019 £3.0 million) of these losses as they may not be used to offset taxable profits elsewhere
n the Group, they bave ansen In subsidianes that have been loss-making tor some time, and there are no other tax planning opportunities or other evidence of

recoverability n the near future.

AL 30 April 2020, there was no recognised deferred tax hability for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group s subsidiaries or
associate (2019 £Ni) The Group has determined that undistibuted profits of its subsidianes or associate will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The Group
has an agreement with its associate that the profits of the associate will not be distributed until it obtains the consent of the Group. The company does not foresee such

a consent being given at the reparting date.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Principal financial assets and Habilities

The principal financial instruments used by the Group from which financial instrument nsk arses, are as follows

- Cash and short term deposits

- Trade and other receivables

- Trade and other payables

- Acoruals

- Contract Assets and Liabiiities
- Pravisions

- Lease liabilities

- Loans and barrowings

- Denvatie financia} instruments

Financial assets and liabilities by catagory

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Total financial assets

Trade and other payables
Accruals

Accrued interest

Deferred consideration
Provisions

Lease liabiities

Loans and borrowings
Denvative iinancial nstruments
Total financial liahilities

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at
amortised cost

204§ 2020 7019

£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 118,037 36 850

- - 37.752 29.979

- . 155,789 6,829

Financial liabilities at fair

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

value through profit or loss
202

2019 2020 2015

£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 1,094,392 973,291
- - 12143 9.253
- - 3,379 686
10 109 2,966 - -
- - 251 145
- - 10,346 9786
. - 850 172 431115
2,708 302 - -
12,817 3,268 1,770,663 1,424,276

The comparatives have been updated to include a full analysis of trade and other payables,

Finantial assets and llabilities not measured at fair value

Financial assets and labdites not measured at far value includes cash and short term depasits, and contract habslities.

Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of cash and cash equivalenis. trade and other recevables. trade and other payabies approxitnates to ther farr value.

Loans and borrowings are camed at amortised cost which approxmates ta their far value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Financial instruments at fair value

The table below analyses financial instruments carnied at tair value by valuation method. Accounting standards require us to disclose them into different levels as

Tollows

Level 1 - Farr values measured using quoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for identcal assets or liapilties
Level 2 - Fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices inciuded within [evel T that are observabfe for the assel or labilify either directly (from prices) or

Indwrectly [derved from prices)

Level 3 - Far values measured using inputs for the asset or Lakilty that are not based on observable market dala

At 30 April 2020

Levet 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets measured at farr value
Interest rate instruments - - - -
Totat finanhcial assets at fair value - - 5 -
Financial labiles measured at far vajue
Interest rate instruments. - 2708 - 2708
Deterred consideration - - 10108 10,108
Foreign exchange forward rate contracts - - - -
Toral financial liabilities at fair value - 2,708 10,109 12,817
At 30 April 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Tofal
£000 £000 £000 £000
Finanoial assets measured at far value
interest rate instruments - . .
Total financial assets at fair value - - -
Financial habiiies measured at far vaiue
Interest rate instruments - 302 - 302
Deferred consideration - - 2,966 2 966
Foreign exchange forward rate contracts - - - -
Total financial liabilities at fair value - A02 2,966 3,268
There were no transfers between levels dunng the year For a reconciliation of movements in level 2 instruments (see note below).
Reconciliatian - financial liabilities
A reconcihiation of the financal liabiltes 15 as follows
Interest rate swaps Deferred considaration Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £800 £000 £000 £400 £800
At 1 May 2019/17 May 2018 302 - 2.966 - 3,266 -
Ansing from acquisitons - - 16 270 3,140 16 270 3140
Paid during the year - - {7.138) (174; (7.138) (1743
Changes in far valus to profit or loss 2.406 302 {1.989) - a17 302
At 18 Agrit 2,708 302 16,109 2,968 12,817 3,268

Deferrad conmideration anses when setlement of afl or part of the cost of a business combination falls due after the date the acquisiion was completed usually through
an earn-out based on post-acquisition performance, and 15 stated at the farr value of the total considerabon cutstanding. At 30 Apnl 2020 the fair value of geferred
consideration was assessed using actual perfarmance to date against each acquisiions’ earn-out targets together with an assessment of future finanaial performance
based on the Group s approved budget. The sensdwvily of deferred consideranon payable to each acquisitens’ future performance against eam-out targets could rasult
in deferred Gensideration payable beng in a range of between a mimmum of £4.3 million to a maximum of £12.8 mifiion,

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated on agreed notional
principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the cash flow exposures on the 1ssued vanable rate debt held. The far value of interest rate swaps at the
reporting date |5 determined by discounting the future cash flows using the curves at the reporting date. The counterparties to the swaps are major global banks

On 25 February 2019 the Group entered a seres of fixed LIBOR wterest rate swaps for @ total notional amount of £220.000.000. The effective dates were 25 Februaty
2019 and termination date are 23 November 2021 with monthly payment dates The fixed rates are 0.983%. These instruments were valued in total as a hability of
£2.708.000 as at 30 Aprl 2020 (2018 £302,000).

There has been no reclassfication of financial (nstruments.
Financial risk management

The Group 8 principal financial babidiwies, other than denvatives, compnse loans and borrowings provisions, lease batiites and trade and other payables The mamn
purpose of these finanoial liabilties 15 to finance the Group's aperations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Group's pnncipal financial assets
include trade and ciner recervables, and cash and shert-term deposils that derve directly from its operatons. The Group enters inlo denvatve transachons but its policy
15 that no trading In denvatives for speculative purposas may be underaken

The Group has exposure to the following nsks from s use of financial iNnstruments
(1) credit nsk

(ny hquidity nsk

i} Interest rate nsk

{Iv} foreign currency nsk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibilty for the establishment and oversight of the Group s nsk management framework. The Group's nsk management pelicies
are established to 'dentify and analyse the nsks faced by the Group. to set appropnate nsk imits and controls and 1o mondor nsks and adherence to imits Risk
management polictes and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect shanges in market condiions and the Group s activiies, The Greup through its raining and
management standards and procedures. aims to develop a disapined and constructive control environment in which ali employees understand their rales and
oblgatons.

The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group s nsk management pohcies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the
nsk management framewaork 1N relation to the nsks faced by the Group

Credit risk

Credu nsk 1s the risk of financial loss 10 the Group if 3 glient or counterparty to a finana:al instrurnent fails to meet its contractual cbhgabons and anses pnncipally from
the Group s receivables from chients. The Group Is exposed to credit risk from its operating actwities (pnmanly trade receivables) and from its financing acuvities,
including deposits with banks and finanaal Instbtutions. foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments, Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit nsk 1s monitored on an ongoing basis No single customer represents more than 1% of revenue

Althe balance sheet date there were na significant concentrations of credit nsk. The maximum exposure to credit nsk 1s represenied by the carmying amount of each
financial assetin the Balance Sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group's cradit sk on trade and other receivables s pnmartly attnbutable to trade recervables The Group consigers the credit quality of trade and other recaivables
collectively and believes that the carmying value of the trade and other recewvables that 15 disclosed in the financial statements gives a fair presentation of the credit
quality of the assets. The Directors estirnate that the carrying value of financial assets within trade and other receivables approximated to therr fair value.

Customer credit nsk 1s managed subject to the Group s established policy procedures and control relating to customer credr risk management. Credit quality of a
customer 1 assessed and ndvidual credit Iinuts are defined in accordance with this assessment. Qutstanding customer receivables are regulary monitored for
collectabiity. The Directors believe there (s a low risk of default due to the high number of recurnng customers and credit control policies, thus the carrying value 1s
expected to be the final value recerved. The Group has no significant concentrations of credit nsk since the nisk 1s spread over a jarge number of unrelated
counterparties.

Total trade receivables from contracts with customers {net of allowances) held by the Group at 30 Apnl 2020 ampurted to £36,637.000 (2019 £28,989.000).

An imparment analysis 1s performed at each reporting date on an indivigual basis for major cients. In addition, a large number of minor recetvables are grouped into
homegencus groups and assessed for imparment collectively using the expected credit loss model, The calcutation 1s based on actual incurred histonical data.

The Group does not hald collateral as secunty. The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade recevables as low, as its customers are located in
several industnes and operaie in largely independent markets.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its exposure to iquidity nsk by reviewing the cash resources required to meet s business objectives through both short and leng-term cash flow
forecasts. The Group's objective 1s to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibilty through the use of bank loans and other borrowings. The Group's
treasury function has a palicy of optmising the level of cash in the businesses n order o miniMese extemal boMowINgs

The matunty profile of the anticipated future cash flows including interest in relation to the Group's non-derivative financial habdiies on an undiscounted basis which
therefare, differs from bath the carrying value and faw valug 15 as follows

L Trade and
Iiabi:::i:: Provisions Borrowings other
At 30 April 2020 payables Accruals Total
£E000 £000 £000 £000 E00D EQ00
In less than one year 2225 291 - 1,094,392 25,744 1122612
In maore thart one year but not more than two years 2168 - - - - 2 168
In morea than two years but not more than five years 4,336 - - - - 4336
In more than five years 3378 - 660,000 - - 663378
Effect of discountfinancing rates {1761 - (9,828) - {113} {11.702)
10,346 251 650,172 1,094,392 25,631 1,780,792
Trade and
Ilal:;;;:: Provisions Borrowings other
At 30 April 2019 payables Accruals Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
In less than one year 1,174 145 - a73 291 13.089 987 K59
In more than one year but not more than two years 1.812 - - - - 1812
In more than two years but not more than five vears 4 544 - - - - 4 544
In more than five years 4615 - 440,000 - - 444 B15
Effect of discountfinancing rates {2.359) - (B.885) - {184) (11428)
9,786 145 431,115 973,291 12,905 1,427,242

The current Serior lean facility of £585 milion (see note 21) include a laverage covenant which requires the leverage (the ratic of Consclidated Senior Secured Net
Leverage to Consoldated Pro Forma EBITDA) does not exceed 9 Bx At year end the leverage was substantially below this level at 5.13x, which has notincreased
matenally year on yaar despite IRIS making signficant acquisitions in the year.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk Is the nsk that the far value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes iIn market interest rates. The Group's
exposure to the nsk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term debt cbligatons with floating interest rates. The Group has fixed a
portion of thisinterest rate using a swap instrument mitigating the cash flow nsk of interest rate movements.

Faoreign currency risk

Farexgn curency nsk 1s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finanmal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's
expasure to the nsk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates pnmarily to the Group's operating achvities (when revenue or expense 15 denominated in a different
currency from the Group's presentation cumency) and the Group's net :investments in foreign subsidianes.

Sensitivity analysis

Financiat Instruments affected by interest rate and foreign currency nsks include borrewings and denvabve financial instruments.
The following analysis is intended to illustrate the sensiivity to changes in market variables, being sterling interest rates and sterling/Indian Rupee exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis assumes reasonable movements in foreign exchange and interest rates before the effect of tax. The Group considers a reasonable interest rate
movement in LIBOR to be 0.25%, based on interest rate history Similarly sensitrvity to movements in sterfing/indian Rupee of 10% are shown reflectng changes of
reasonable proportion in the context of movement in that currency pair over the last year,

Using the above assumphons the following table shows the illustrative effect on the Consclidated income statement and equity.

2020 2019

Tncome Equily Thcome Equity

{losses) {1 il {I W I W

gains gains gains gains

£000 £000 £000 £000

0.25% increase in market interest rates (828) (826} (688) (688)
0.25% decrease in market interest rates 826 826 688 88
10% strengthening of sterling versus cther currencies {375) (533} [E)] (123)
10% weakening of sterling versus other currencies 458 6562 80 150

Capital Management

The group’s cbjectives when managing capital are to provide returns for sharehotders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. In order to mamntain or adjust the Group's capital structure. the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or amend Its debt arrangements.

The Group & share capital s disclosed 1n note 24 and 1ts debt structure 15 detaded N note 21.
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Notes to the Fi ial 1ts {continued)
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

PROVISIONS
2020 2019
£000 £000
At t May Z019/17 May 2018 145 -
Arising on acquisitions 1086 145
Charged to the profit and loss account - 30
Utilsed - E)]
251 145

At 30 April

The provision for dilapidations 1s 1n respect of praperly leases that contain requirements for the premises to be returned to their original state on the condusien of the
lease terms.

These provisions are estmates because the actyal costs and tming of future cash flows are dependent on future events. The property leases have expiry dates within
five years after the reporting date Any differance between expectations and the actual future ability will be accounted for when such determination 1S Made.

BORROWINGS
On 13 September 2018, the Group Increasead its Senvor loan faciity by £145 million te £585 million to finance the acquismion of FMP Global Holings Limited  The

Acquisition Credit Facilities of £75 muliion was drawn down in full durfig the year to increase the fiquidity of the Group n & penod of significant global ancartaimty and int
advance of planned acquisiions in the coming year and the Revoiving Credit Facility of £40 mullion was avaikable and undrawn. At 30 Apnl 2020. the faciltes have a
bullet repayment and remaining term of between & and 6.5 years. The Revolving Credit faciity will assist the Group to acheve its growth ambwons both erganieally and

by further acquisitians.

2020 2013
£°000 £000
Current
Borrowings - -
Non-current
Borowings 850,172 431,115
550,172 431,718
At 30 April 2020 Effective interest rate Maturity Facility
Utilised
Semor bark loan £000
Facility B LIBOR +4.00% to +4.50% margin Sep 2025 585.000 000
LIBOR +4.00% to +4.80% margin Sep 2025 75 000 000

Acquistion Facihly
LIBOR +3.00% to +4 00% margin Mar 2025 -

Revolving Credit Facility
560,000,000
An analysis of the maturity of the loans 1s set out below
36 Aprit 2020 30 April 2019
Borrowings Seniar Total Senior Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Amounts falling dug between two and five years - -
Ampunts falling due 1n mare than five years. Senor 660 000 60 000 440.000 440,000
660,000 660.000 440.000 440,000
Unamortised borrowing costs 8 428 {9.828) (8.885) (8.885)
Amounts falling due after more than one year 650172 650,172 431.115 431145
Amounts falling due within less than one year - - -~ -
856,172 650.172 431,115 431.1t5
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

Secunty for the Senior and Second Lien Liabiliies takes the form of debentures giving fixed and floating charges over the assets of certain Group undertakings which

have acceded to a cross-guarantee structure All other loans are unsecured.

During the year the Group Mas incurred ssue costs amounting to £2 405 000 (2019 £8 589 000} in respect of these facilties Interest s allocated against the balance
outstanding and the costs plus interest are allocated to the sncome statement over the term of the facility using the straight ine method

The Senior Facility Agreement aiso Makes avattable to the Group an additional £75 000,000 on the Acguisttion Facility which was fully drawn at the year end (2013 £Nil
utiised) and £40 000,000 on the Revolving Credit Facility which was unutiised at 30 Apnl 2020 (2019 £Nil utlised),

22 COMMITMENTS

221 Other capital commitments
The Group had no other capital commtments

23 ACCRUALS

Accruals
Accrued Interest
Deferred cansideration {note 19.3)

24 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
Group and company:

Number
847.213

Share premium

Group

2020 2019

£9000 £'000

12 143 9253

3379 686

10.109 2 966

25631 12 905
2020 2019
Class Nominal value £000 £'000
Qrdinary £0.01 9 g
9 9

538 938

847 247

Or 17 May 20714, the company was INcarporated with the issue of 1 ordinary £1 shares for £1.
On & September 2018, the company subdivided the 1 Ordinary share into 100 shares of £0.01 each and 1ssued a further 1ssued 947,112 Crdinary shares for £947 112.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {GContinued)
for the Year ended 39 April 2020

ACQUISITIONS

Innervision Management Limited

On 29 August 2019 the Group acquired 100 per cent of the 1ssued share capital of Innennsion Managament Limited. The fair vajue of the total consideratian net of cash
and borrowings acqured was £21 157 000 The acquislion was accounted for under the acquisition method. The first perod of account covers the penod from 29

August 2019 ta 30 April 2020.

innenaision 1s a global prowder of lease accounting software lease management consultancy and services with a seftware solution that provides full visibiity of real-time
lease data.

The following table sets out the book values of the identifiable assets and labilibes acquired and their proyisional fair values to the Group

. Fair value to
Book value Revaluation

Group
Assets £'000 £'ppo £'000
Intangibie assets - 9444 9 444
Property plant and eguipment 109 - 109
Right of use assets 283 - 283
Trade recewables from contracts with customers 1.12¢ - 1129
Contract gssets 324 (324 -
Other receivables 70 - 70
Total assets 1,915 9,120 11,035
Liabilities
Trade payables (293} - {293)
Acgruals {64 - (84)
Lease habilites {331 - (331}
Contract liabilitres (1452} 328 (1.184;
Other creditors {B2) - (82)
Deferred tax - {1,794) (1794
Total llahilities (2,262} (1,468) 13,728)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value, net of cash acquired {347) 7.654 7,307
Goodwill 13.850
Purchase consideration transferred 21,157
Satisfied by
Cash consideration 11720
Deferred cansideration 10,733

Cash acquired 1.296)
21,15
—_—

The acquired business contnbuted revenues of £2 412,000 and net profit of £570 000 to the group for the perod from 29 August 2019 to 30 Apnl 2020,

FMP Global Holdings Limited

On 13 September 2019 the Group acquired 100 per cent of the 1ssued share capital of FMP Glubal Holdings Limited and 1ts subsichanes. The fair value of the totat
consideration net of cash and borrowings acquired was £120 375.000. The acquisiion was accounted for under the acguisiion method. The first penod of account
covers the penod from 13 September 2019 to 30 Apnl 2020,

FMP Global provides payroll ahd HR services to both interational and the UK based small and medium sized enterpnses. Specifically FMPG has operations in over 80
countnes It it was formed in 2016 wia a merger of three payrall HR software and services companies The acquisition was griven by the opportunity o invest in a giobal
payroll and HR software supplier with a streng product'senvice offenng & represents an oppertunity to bolster Human Capital Management and payroll software revenug
growth whule expanding presence in intermational markets (US and Europe) and strengthening IRIS posiions in the UK,

The following table sets out the book values of the identifiable assets and habilites acquired and their provisional fair values to the Group

Book value Revaluation Fair value to
Group

Assets £'000 £'000 £'000
Intangible assets - 38,330 38330
Preperty plant and equipment 409 - 409
Right of use assets 304 - 304
Trade recewables from contracts with customers 2135 - 2135
Contract assets 1159 {1159 -
Other recevables 1077 - 1.077
Tatal assets 5,084 37,471 42,255
Liabilities
Trade payabies (293) - {293)
Accruals {1415} - {1415)
Lease labilites (2701 - 27
Contract habiliies {2.416) 751 {1 665)
Defemed consideraton 874y - (874)
Gther credhitars (7081 - {796}
Comporation tax {B55; - (555)
Deferred tax - (7 283 7 283
Total liabilities (6,529} (8,532} (13,081)
Total identifiatile et assets at fair value, net of cash acquired {1,445) 30,639 25,194
Goodwill 91181
Purchase consideration transferred 120,375
Satisfied by
Cash consideration 86 666
Deferred consideration 3500
Borrowings setiled 38 391
Cash gequired {8 182}

120,375

The acquired business contrbuted revenues of £14 918 000 and net praft of £1,953 000 to the group for the penod from 13 September 2019 to 30 Apnj 2020,
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued}
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for the Year ended 30 April 2020
ACQUISITIONS {continued}

Rlayhall Profoccional Limited

On 10 October 2018, the Group acquired 100 per cent of the 1ssued share capital of Blayhall Professional Limited and its subsidiangs, The fair value of the total
considerabien net of cash and borrowings acquired was £41.558.000 The acquisiion was acceunted for under the acquisihon method The first perrod of account covers
the period from 10 October 2019 to 30 April 2020.

Blayhall 1s engaged throughn its subsidiaries in the development and supply of practice management software solubions to medium and [arge accountancy firms, with
small number of customers in other sectors. The Transaction 1s a part of |R|S's strategic plan to fuel interational expansion in English speaking countries predominantly
the Umites States. Further. it provides an opportunity to service the needs of accounting firms requinng practice management with a functonally nch and technically
advanced solution

The following table sets out the book vaiues of the identifiable assets and liabilities acgquired and therr provisicnal fair values to the Group
Fair value to

Beok value Revaluation
Group

Assels £'000 £'000 £'000
Intangible assets - 18 544 18,544
Property plant and equiprment ra - 71
Right of use assets 22 - 22
Trade receivables from contracts with customers 1777 - 1.777
Contract assets 772 (7723 -
Other recervables 4493 - 449
Stock 30 - 30
Total assets 3121 17,772 20,893
Liabifities
Trade payables (182} - {182)
Accruals (408} - {409)
Lease habilities (4) - 14
Contract habities (6,060 1359 (4701
Other craditors (507} - {507)
Corperation tax (94} - (94)
Deferred tax {13} (4.172) (4.185)
Total liabilities (7,268) {2,813) {10,082)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value, net of cash acquired {4.148) 14,959 10,811
Goodwill 30748
Purchase consideration transferred 41,559
Satisfled by
Cash consideration 56,933
Deferred consideration 1163
Cash acqurred 16.537)

41,569

Deferred consideration reprasents contingent consideration payable to the vendors by the Group that 15 not inked to each venders conbnued employment, Where the
payment of deferred consideration |5 contingent upon the continuing employment of vendors by the Group, it 1s freated as a remuneration expense and a charge is made
through the Consolidated Income Statement as a cost of employment,

The acguired business contributed revanues of £4 689,000 and net profit of £1 268,000 to the group for the pened from 10 October 2018 1o 30 Apni 2020,

Pro-forma effect of acquisitions on revenue and profit

f the acquistion had occumed on 1 May 2019, conselidated pro-forma revenue and net loss for the year ended 30 Aprif 2020 would have been £210 263 000 and
£122 608 000 respectively. The figures mdude IFRS3 far value adjustements which affect the post acguisition revenue and net loss.

These amounts have been calculated using the subsidiary’s results prepared using account policies which are consistant wath the Group's and adjustng

them for the additional depreciation and amortisation that would have been charged assuming the fair value adjustmeants to property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets had appked from 1 May 2019, together with the consequential tax effects, No adjustment has been made for addtional financing that was
required to finance the acguisition.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There are ne known adjusting or unadjusting events occurring between the balance sheet date and the date when the financial stalements are authonsed for 1ssue.

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
On 3 March 2020, the Company 1ssued to management 42,796 C1 shares (2019 88.304 C1 shares and 6,667 C2 shares} which can be sold only on leaving the
business, at cost, or on the sale of the business which 15 the date on the forecast maturty details of which are set out below.

These shares fall under the definition of share based payments and are reported under IFRS2,

The fair value of the shares were calculated using the Mante Carlo model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option the impact of dilution {where
matenal) the share pnce at grant date {based on an assessment of enterpnse value using a discounted cash flow approach) and expected pnce volatility of the
underlying share, the expected dividend yield, the nsk-free interest rate for the term of the optien. and the correlations and velatilites of the peer group companies. The
Inputs to the medel and fair value charge are

2020 Grants 2019 Grants

Share pnece on issue £5 £1
Prce paid £1 £1
Diwvidend yield 0% 0%
Risk-free interast rate 1.3% 13%
Forecast matunty 30/04/2023 30/0412023
Volatihty 35.1% 38.7%
Fair value of shares £11,506,000 £23,080 000
Number of Number of
shares shares
At 17 May 2018 -
Granted in the period 94 971
Forfeted in the penod 17,887
Outstanding at 30 Aprii 2019 77,084
Granted in the year 42,796 -
Forfeited in the year - {18 765)
Outstanding at 30 Aprit 2020 42,796 58,319

The expected price volatity s based on a benchmark of observable simiar companies.
The total share-based payment cost charged to the income statement for the year ended 30 Apnl 2020 was £2 483,000 (2018 £2 565 000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
for the Year ended 30 April 2020

RESERVES
COMPANY Retained
eamings
£000
A1 May 2018 -
Result for the period -
Al 30 April 2019 ——
Result for the year -
At 30 April 2020 .

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are no contingent habiliies (2019 nene),

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Group operates a defined contribution perscnal pension scheme which 1s open to all staff. The pension cost for the year represents centnbutions payable by the
Group to the funds and amounted to £2 068 00C (2019 £847 000). Pension coninbutions unpaid at the year end were £437.000 (2019 £324,000).

DIVIDENDS FER SHARE

The Company did not declare of pay a dradend in the year (2019 £nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group considers Its matenal related partes o be ts subsidiary undertakings and Executive Committee members. The Group has laken advantage of the exemption
avarfable under [AS 24, “Refated Parfy Oisclosures”, not to disclose details of transachons with s subsiiary underiakings.
Compensation paid to key management by subsichares 1s disclosed in note 5. Share based payments issued to management by the Company 1s disclosed in note 27.

Supplier transactions ocourred dunng the year between the Group HG Pooled Management Limited and ICG Limited. Transactions relate to prowding the senices of
the Directors. Dunng the year ended 30 Apnl 202G £516 000 {2019 £259,000) related to these ransattions was charged through administrative expenses. There were
outstanding amounts payable of £354 000 at 30 Apnl 2020 (2019 £140,000).

During the year ended 30 Apnl 2020. RIS Debteo Limited charged interest on amounts owed by IRIS Eideo Limited totailing £115,786 000 {2018 £69 550 000) and
there were putstanding amounts due of £1,077,937,000 at 30 Apnl 2020 (2019 £962.150.000) as set out In note 15. in additicn. durng the year ended 30 Aprd 2020
RIS Debtco Limted was charged interest on amounts owed 10 1RIS Mdco Lrmited totalling £115 786 000 (2019 £69,550,000) and there wers outstanding amounts
payable of £1,077,937.000 at 30 Apnl 2020 (2019 £926.150 000; as set out 1n note 17.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-conlraling wmterests it equily i the Groug balance sheel represent the share of net assets 5f subsidiary undertakings held autside the Group. The movernent in the
year comprises the profit atnbutable to such nterests together with movements In respect of corporate transactions and related exchange differences.

2020 2018

£'000 £'000
At 1 May 2015/17 May 2018 1.063 -
Nen-controling interest anising on business combination - 807
Effect of movement in exchange rales a3 11
Non-controling interest s share of profit for the year 442 245
At 30 April 1,638 1,063

PRO-FORMA RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2019

Tha Pro-forma resutts for the Group are provided here in order to report key financial performance indicators on an annual basis, as f the Group had owned the
businesses it acquired on 6 Septemer 2018 for both years

2019

£'000
Managernent Revenue (see Note 35) 162,197
Cost of sales {11873
Management EBITDA (see note 35) 78499
Gross profit margin % 93%
EBITOA margin % LEL
Management Operating Cash Flow (see note 35) 76930

RECONCILIATION OF MANAGEMENT REVENUE, EBITDA AND OPERATING CASH FLOW

MANAGEMENT REVENUE
Management Revenue, which is @ non-GAAP measure represents the basis on which Management review the performance of the Group and 1s defined as revenue
excluding the impact of revenue deferrals ansing on acquisitions and the defemnng revenue on certain hcence income streams. It may be reconciled as follows

2020 2019
E'000 £'000
Revenue 194,976 91,545
Effect of farr value of contract habilibes on acquisition 4.498 16 496
Impact of deferring of revenue on gertain licence Income streams (72) 173
Management Revenue 199,402 107,868
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RECONCILIATION OF MANAGEMENT REVENUE, EBITDA AND OPERATING CASH FLOW (continued)
MANAGEMENT EBITDA

Management EBITDA represents the basis an which Management review the parformance of the Group, taking account of non-trading and exceptional tems. It may be
reconciled as follows

2020 2019
Note E£'000 £'000
Operating profit / (loss) 26,836 (10,645)
Management exceptionals 1,537 1.237
Transaction related costs & 8223 11,869
Effact of far value of contract labdibes on acquisition 4,498 16 496
Depreciation & [0ss on disposal of fixed assets 11 2,756 1219
Depreciation of nght-of-use-assets 12 1,780 714
Amorttsation of intangibles 10 49978 20771
Impaiment of intangbtes 10 - 5167
'mpact of recognising sales commissions as they fall due (3,543 (2618)
mpact of recegnising rents as they fall due (2 392} {810)
Impact of share based payments 2483 2,585
Management EBITDA 92,156 54,865

Management EBITDA 1s a non GAAP measure used te monitor the performance of the business and 1s defined as operating profit before depreciation amortisation and
management exceptional nems. The impact of recognising sales commissions as they fall due of £3.533,000 (2019 £2 618 000) and the impact of recognising rents as
they fall due of £612,000 (2019 £(10.000)) has aiso been removed as this impact was not included in the Management Accounts for the year ended 30 Apnl 2020 and
1s consislent with our reporting te our shareholders and lenders.

Management exceptonal items include costs of £1,455,000 {2019 £nil} In respect of post-acquisition inlegration costs £1,866 008 (2019 £nil) n respect of
transformational projects resuiting in the development of the Group infrastructure platforms such as RIS Elements and Quantum £530.000 (2019 £807.000) relating to
the Datchet office move to Heathrow Approach £nil {2019 £430,000} of other non-recurnng costs, offset by a credit of £2,314,000 (2019 Enil) relating to revisions to
deferred consideration in respect of pnor yaar acquisitions,

MANAGEMENT OPERATING CASH FLOW

Management operating cash flow, which 1s a non-GAAP measure, represents the basis on which Management review the performance of the Group and i1s defined as
net cash flows generated from operating actvibes after tax, capital expenditure and engoing development expenditure and excludes management exceptionals and the
impact of recognising rents as they fall due. It may be reconciled as follows

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 84,588 44,981
Management exceptionals paid 2,474 1237
Transachon related costs paid 3223 11 606
Taxahon paid 1,824 2429
Purchase of tangible assets (5,030) {3354)
Development expendiiure (3,500) {2,250
Impact of recogrising rents as they fall due (11115 (773)
Management operating cash flow 87,568 53,876

CONTROLLING PARTY

According o the register maintaned by the Company, a number of imited partnerships which are managed by Hg Pooled Management Limned { HgCapital") {holding
through a nominee company)} held a significant interest in the ordinary shares of the Group's utmate Parent Comgpany. Perenmial Newco 2 Ltd, at 30 Apnl 2020 and
subseguently to the date of approval of the financial statements. The Directors' deem there not to be an ultimate controling party as nene of the mrted partners in the
limited partnerships managed by HgCapnal has an ownership of more than 20% of the issued share capital of the Company.

AUDIT EXEMPTION UNDER SECTION 479A OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
The Directors consider that sutsicianes of the Group are entitled to exemption from the requirement to have an audit under the provision of section 4794 of the

Companies Act 2006 ("the Act™} and the members have not required the company to obtain an audit for the perod In guestion N accordance wilh section 475 of the Act.

IRIS Debtco Ltd has guaranteed the liabilites of the fallpwang subsidiaries in order that they quaiy for the exemption from audit under section 4784 of the Companies
Act 2006 n respect of the year ended 30 Apnl 2020,

Registration

number
123Comms Ltd 04336438
Beaumont Solutions Ltd 04388455
Cascade Human Resources Ltd 02683800
Homecontact Ltd 06986318
Truancy Call Ltd 04125665
Intex {(Radiographic} Ltd oos418M
IRIS Heldings Ltg 04091087
IRIS Fayrall Software Ltd 05615912
RIS Payroll Solutions Lid 01865495
RIS Software Group Ltd 06295385
IRIS Software {Haldco 2) Ltd 05294985
RIS Software (Holdco 4) Lid 07851248
IRIS Resourcing Ltd 06220817
Kashflow Software Ltd 05674043
Keytime Objective Ltd 05285245
PTP Software Lid 03166574
Results Squared Lid 05897771
Blayhalt Payroll Ltd 09315222
Galaxy Payroll Ltd 01553154
TaxFiler Ltd 08168004
Biostore Lid 05532773
Fastrak Ltd 08724223
Hested Accountants Ltd 06741443
trdigo Marketing Ltd 07794433

The Directors acknowledge their responsitiliies for complying with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 with respect to accounting recerds and the preparation
of financial statements.
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